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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: I will start the

          3  meeting of the Land Use Subcommittee on Landmarks,

          4  Public Siting and Maritime Uses. My name is Jessica

          5  Lappin. I am the Chair of this Subcommittee. We're

          6  joined by the Chair of the Land Use Committee, who

          7  is walking in, Melinda Katz, and members of the

          8  Committee, Council Member Maria del Carmen Arroyo

          9  from the Bronx, Council Member Annabel Palma from

         10  the Bronx, Council Member Maria Baez from the Bronx,

         11  Council Member Charles Barron from Brooklyn, Council

         12  Member Jimmy Oddo from Staten Island and Council

         13  Member Robert Jackson from Manhattan.

         14                 There are two landmark items on the

         15  agenda today that have fewer people here to testify.

         16  We are going to start with those. And Diane Jackier

         17  is here from the Landmarks Commission.

         18                 MS. JACKIER: Good morning, Council

         19  Members. My name is Diane Jackier, Director of

         20  External Affairs for the Landmarks Preservation

         21  Commission. I am here today to testify on the

         22  Commission's designation of the Morse Building as a

         23  New York City landmark.

         24                 On March 14, 2006, the Landmarks

         25  Commission held a public hearing on the proposed
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          2  designation. Two people spoke in favor, including a

          3  representative of the Historic Districts Council.

          4  There were no speakers in opposition. The Commission

          5  also received letters in support from the owner,

          6  which is 140 Nassau Residence Corporation, Council

          7  Member Alan Gerson and Manhattan Community Board 1.

          8                 On September 19, 2006, the Commission

          9  voted to designate the Morse Building a New York

         10  City landmark.

         11                 Built in 1878 to 80, the original

         12  eight-story Morse Building was a speculative

         13  commission by cousins Sidney Morse and G. Livingston

         14  Morse, who were sons of the founders of the

         15  newspaper, the New York Observer, and nephews of the

         16  famed Samuel Morse, the artist and inventor of the

         17  electric telegraph. Located in the center of New

         18  York City's newspaper publishing and printing

         19  industries along Park Row, this building was the

         20  first major design of architects Benjamin Sillman

         21  and James Farnsworth, who incorporated elements of

         22  the Victorian Gothic and Neo-grec styles into the

         23  building. The intricate polychrome brickwork, among

         24  the finest of its time surviving in New York City,

         25  was supplied by the Peerless Brick Company of
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          2  Philadelphia. It features rich hues of deep red

          3  contrasted with glazed brick, largely to emphasize

          4  the outlines of the fenestration.

          5                 Just 20 years after its completion,

          6  the Morse Building was altered by architects

          7  Bannister and Schell, in order to compete with the

          8  much taller steel skyscrapers that were being built

          9  in 1890s. The architects remodeled the base,

         10  reconstructed the upper two stories and added four

         11  steel-framed stories clad in cream colored brick.

         12  The two lower floors were remodeled during a 1965

         13  renovation that involved the removal of a

         14  tenth-story balcony. The building remained in

         15  commercial use until 1980 when it was converted to a

         16  residential building, which it remains today.

         17                 The Commission urges you to affirm

         18  the designation.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you very

         20  much. I wanted to ask, is Michael Sherwood here to

         21  testify on this item or the other item?  The other

         22  item, okay. Seeing, there is nobody else here to

         23  testify on this item, I close the hearing and open

         24  the hearing on the item that is in Council McMahon's

         25  district, the Staten Island Savings Bank.
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          2                 MS. JACKIER: Good morning again,

          3  Commissioners. Diane Jackier, from the Landmarks

          4  Commission. I am here today on the Commission's

          5  designation of the Staten Island Savings Bank as a

          6  New York City landmark.

          7                 On May 16, 2006, the Landmarks

          8  Commission held a public hearing on the proposed

          9  designation. Five people spoke in favor, including

         10  representatives of City Council Member Michael

         11  McMahon, the Historic Districts Council, Society for

         12  the Architecture of the City, the Municipal Arts

         13  Society and the Preservation League of Staten

         14  Island. A representative of the owner asked the

         15  Landmarks Commission to defer action until

         16  recommendations of the overall reinvestment plan for

         17  Stapleton was finalized in the fall of 2006.

         18                 The Commission had held two previous

         19  public hearings on the building in 1966. On

         20  September 19, 2006, the Commission voted to

         21  designate the Staten Island Savings Bank a New York

         22  City landmark.

         23                 Completed in 1925 and sited

         24  prominently at the corner of Water and Beach Streets

         25  on an angular lot, the Staten Island Savings Bank
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          2  was designed by the nationally recognized firm of

          3  Delano and Aldrich. The architects took advantage of

          4  the site's acute angle, creating a dramatic entrance

          5  of a colonnaded portico with a fish-scaled, cast

          6  lead dome that recalls Stapleton's maritime

          7  heritage. The Italian Renaissance-style building

          8  features a shield over the entrance gate that

          9  includes a hive and two bees representing industry,

         10  commerce and thrift. An owl that stands atop the

         11  shield represents wisdom. The facade features a pair

         12  of dolphin sconces that support lanterns with their

         13  tails as well as scalloped shells and knotted ropes.

         14                 William Adams Delano and Chester

         15  Holmes Aldrich had both worked at the acclaimed

         16  architecture firm of Carrere and Hastings,

         17  responsible for the Richmond County Savings Bank and

         18  Borough Hall, before they established their own firm

         19  in 1903. Aldrich, a Rhode Island native, had a

         20  strong connection to Staten Island through Aldrich

         21  Farm, a home for boys that he ran with his sister.

         22                 The Staten Island Savings Bank was

         23  founded in 1864 by a group of local businessmen and

         24  opened in 1867. In 1997, it became a subsidiary of

         25  Staten Island Bancorp, a stock holding company that
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          2  was acquired in 2004 by Brooklyn-based Independence

          3  Community Bank Corporation. Earlier this year,

          4  Independence merged with Sovereign Bancorp. The

          5  Commission urges you to affirm the designation.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you. Do any

          7  of my colleagues have questions for Diane?

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Yes, I do.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Council Member

         10  Barron.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Chair Lappin,

         12  we said over and over again, and I raise this at

         13  each and every hearing, that when we do any

         14  landmarking that is during the slave period, it

         15  should be included, whether they participated in it

         16  or didn't participate in it, but you keep ignoring

         17  it. We sent you letters. I raise this every meeting

         18  we have and you still come here with landmarking

         19  stuff that doesn't have anything to do with African

         20  people who built this City. I'm sick and tired of

         21  it. Because I have been patient. I have asked you

         22  nicely each and every hearing if you had slavery or

         23  after slavery with participation, it was in this

         24  City from 1625 to around the 1840s and it even

         25  continued after that, even though it wasn't the law,
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          2  to at least put it in, acknowledge it, and that

          3  hasn't happened with these landmarking. It is just

          4  part of history and we are sick of being invisible

          5  people in the history of landmarking.

          6                 Chair, I just wanted to continue to

          7  say this. It is getting sickening that it cannot be

          8  mentioned anywhere in it because even in 1864,

          9  things were happening with black people in New York

         10  City and slavery was around longer than what people

         11  think in the great City of New York. I want to see

         12  it on record in things that we are landmarking.

         13                 MS. JACKIER: I did want to add that

         14  the Committee has sent a letter to the Commission

         15  and I think all of the members of the Subcommittee

         16  signed on asking for the designation reports to

         17  accurately reflect research that has conducted

         18  regarding slavery, and was there in this designation

         19  report, which I have in front of me but I haven't

         20  read cover to cover, Was that investigated? Yes. For

         21  all of our designations, we are well aware of the

         22  Subcommittee's concern and have included researching

         23  African-American history, other minority history,

         24  and when we do find anything, we do it include in

         25  our designation reports.

                                                            12

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON LANDMARKS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: I do know that

          3  since we sent the letter, Council Member Barron,

          4  there have been a couple of designation reports that

          5  did reflect a history of slavery on the site. What

          6  you are saying on the record is that there was no

          7  record of slavery either --

          8                 MS. JACKIER: Right. For the specific

          9  designation.  We have included it, of course, in all

         10  of historical districts reports, when we have a

         11  group, a collection of buildings and we are really

         12  able to focus on African-American history and

         13  include that in our reports, in terms of the history

         14  of the neighborhood and how it developed.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Yes, but part

         16  of the problem is how many African-American

         17  researchers do you have?

         18                 MS. JACKIER: I don't know if we have

         19  any African-American researchers --

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: I know you

         21  don't.

         22                 MS. JACKIER: No, actually we --

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Then you just

         24  got that person yesterday.

         25                 MS. JACKIER: We were able to, with
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          2  the help of the City Council, we were able to hire

          3  five more people into our Research Department.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: And you have

          5  one?

          6                 MS. JACKIER: No, we have, I think it

          7  is three.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Three out of

          9  how many?

         10                 MS. JACKIER: Out of eight.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Out of eight.

         12  Making a little progress.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you, Diane.

         14                 Yes, Council Member Oddo.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: With respect to

         16  the item in Council Member McMahon's district, is

         17  there any reason why the Community Board and the VP

         18  haven't acted on the request yet?

         19                 MS. JACKIER: We send all of our

         20  designation, all the buildings that are up for

         21  designation to the Community Boards and to the

         22  Borough President, but they don't always respond. We

         23  are always happy to hear from them, but we don't

         24  always. So for this one, we did not hear from either

         25  of them.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Okay, thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: And I would add,

          4  the Morse Building in Council Member Gerson's

          5  district, and Council Member Gerson is in support,

          6  and this building, Council Member McMahon is

          7  strongly in support. Thank you.

          8                 Michael Sherwood is the other

          9  witness. You are here to testify on the school?

         10  Okay. In favor or opposition?  Favor, okay.

         11                 Seeing nobody else here to testify on

         12  this matter, this hearing is closed. I would like to

         13  ask the Counsel to call for a vote on just these two

         14  items. I recommend a favorable vote.

         15                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Chair Lappin.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Aye.

         17                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

         18  Barron.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: May I be

         20  excused to explain my vote?

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: So ordered.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: First of all,

         23  I vote aye on all these items with the complaint

         24  that I have already registered. And I do have an

         25  emergency activity I have to go to regarding the
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          2  killing of Sean Bell, but this hearing that is

          3  coming up is very, very important to me and I just

          4  want to let my colleague Carmen Arroyo (sic) know

          5  that I am going to be very, very supportive of you

          6  until they negotiate something that you are

          7  satisfied with. But I won't be able to say that at

          8  the hearing, and we have a lot of company this

          9  morning, you all need to come by more often around

         10  other matters here. Who invited you, the Mayor?

         11                 Anyway, I will be glad to come back.

         12  I'm sure the hearing will be going on for a while.

         13  But I just want to say that I support you 100

         14  percent and I shall return, but I have an urgent

         15  matter that I have to attend to. Aye on all. Thank

         16  you.

         17                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

         18  Palma.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: Aye.

         20                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

         21  Arroyo.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO: Aye.

         23                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

         24  Oddo.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO. Yes.
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          2                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: The vote stands

          3  five in the affirmative, none in the negative, no

          4  abstentions.

          5                 The vote is left open for the

          6  duration of the hearing.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Okay. Now, I

          8  would like to move to the Mott Haven School Campus

          9  that is in Council Member Arroyo's district and

         10  invite Deputy Mayor Walcott to come and testify and

         11  there is a number of CSA officials.  As well; Sharon

         12  Greenberger, Kenrick Ou and Ross Holden.

         13                 Before you begin, Mr. Deputy Mayor, I

         14  wanted to, just for the folks who are here who are

         15  ready or interested in testifying today, please fill

         16  out one of these slips with the Sergeant-at-Arms and

         17  indicate whether you are testifying for or against.

         18  After the Administration speaks, we are going to

         19  limit testimony to two minutes because there are so

         20  many people here who want to testify and I think it

         21  is important from everybody who wants to put their

         22  views on the record and do that, we have to limit

         23  everybody to two limits. We are not going to vote on

         24  this item today, because we want to hear what

         25  everybody who has come here today has to say, and
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          2  that's the point of having a hearing like this, and

          3  take your views into account as we deliberate and

          4  make decisions.

          5                 This is in Council Member Arroyo's

          6  district. She has been very engaged and involved

          7  working with the Administration to try and resolve

          8  some of the issues that appear to be still

          9  outstanding regarding environmental remediation,

         10  traffic. This year a number of students that are

         11  already in this immediate area and I hope that we

         12  will gain some more clarification and resolution to

         13  those issues today. I know that the members of the

         14  Subcommittee are very supportive of Council Member

         15  Arroyo and her concerns and want to support her in

         16  seeing them be addressed and resolved. I would like

         17  to turn the floor over to her and offer her a chance

         18  to make some remarks.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO: Thank you,

         20  Madam Chair. I speak not only to those representing

         21  the Administration, my colleagues, but those in the

         22  general public in particular. This project, sited in

         23  a district that experiences already an

         24  over-saturation of middle high school seats, is a

         25  very serious concern. The public safety concerns
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          2  that arise from having somewhere in the neighborhood

          3  of 9,000 middle high school seats in a half mile

          4  radius is a very serious concern.

          5                 In particular, the concern is around

          6  the environmental integrity of the site. But more

          7  importantly, the environmental integrity of the

          8  property where two adjacent schools are currently

          9  operating. We have identified contamination at both

         10  the proposed site and the site where IS 151, PS 156,

         11  PS 31 and the Kipps Academy are located. When you

         12  hear the parents and the community residents

         13  regarding the health concerns that we have for the

         14  children that are currently attending those schools,

         15  2,300 young people, somewhere in the neighborhood of

         16  about 300 staff currently going to school, working

         17  in an environment that is environmentally

         18  compromised is a very serious concern.

         19                 My hope is that we can step back and

         20  take a breather and have an opportunity to ensure

         21  that we engage the community in a discussion around

         22  the issues that we can demonstrate to the community

         23  that this is not a conversation with the Council

         24  Member and the Administration, but a conversation

         25  with the community about the concerns that have been
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          2  raised. And that if we get a commitment to come to

          3  the table and have serious conversations about

          4  addressing these concerns, we can come out of this

          5  with a win/win for everyone concerned.

          6                 This is not about not agreeing that

          7  we don't need additional schools in the Bronx. But

          8  when I look at the numbers of the schools in my

          9  district, we have available capacity in the middle

         10  in high schools in that district.

         11                 There may be those who disagree with

         12  that number, but those numbers were provided to me

         13  by the Department of Education. I can only site the

         14  information that has been made available to me. And

         15  I may add, information that has been made available

         16  only recently, because the community stood up and

         17  said, no, this is a problem, we need to talk about

         18  this. We need to be engaged in this conversation in

         19  a very serious way. That is all that I ask so that

         20  at the end of the day, we address everyone's

         21  concerns and possibly create the opportunity to

         22  address the overcrowding, not in the schools in my

         23  district, but in the schools in the Bronx. And

         24  because we are team players here, and this is not

         25  about Councilwoman Arroyo, this is about the
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          2  community I represent and the concerns raised by the

          3  community, I hope that at the end of this process,

          4  we can all celebrate together, instead of holding

          5  separate press conferences because we stand on

          6  different sides of the issue. Thank you, Madam

          7  Chair.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: We've been joined

          9  by Council Member Comrie.

         10                 Chairwoman Katz.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: I thank you,

         12  Madam Chair, for allowing me to join in on the

         13  Subcommittee hearing. I guess I really just want to

         14  voice my support for Council Member Arroyo in the

         15  work that she is doing. There is no one in this

         16  Council, I don't believe, that would agree that we

         17  need school seats in the City of New York. We have

         18  all fought for it. We've gone to the State for it.

         19  There has been lawsuits on it. We do need to make

         20  sure that they are placed.

         21                 However, just because we need them

         22  doesn't mean that it is appropriate every single

         23  place in the City of New York. I do believe that the

         24  Council Members who are local members, who know the

         25  community probably better than anyone and who work
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          2  with the civic groups and the school groups and the

          3  PAs and all the folks in the community, are very

          4  good at figuring out in their district what is

          5  needed and how things might be placed.

          6                 The quality of schools is an

          7  extremely important issue. But I'm not sure that

          8  sheer number of seats is going to affect the quality

          9  of the education that the children receive. It may

         10  be one factor, but it is not the entire factor.

         11  Perhaps the quality may be what we need to also look

         12  at in the future. But I just am here really to

         13  support Council Member Arroyo and to hear what the

         14  Administration has to say, and hopefully as we move

         15  forward in the future, the future school sitings,

         16  that we work together from the very beginning of the

         17  process. Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you. And

         19  with that, Deputy Major Walcott, please begin. Just

         20  introduce yourself for the record.

         21                 MR. HOLDEN: Good morning, Chairperson

         22  Lappin and Council Members. My name is Ross Holden.

         23  I am Vice President and General Counsel to the New

         24  York City School Construction Authority. To my right

         25  is Deputy Mayor Walcott. He is Deputy Mayor for

                                                            22

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON LANDMARKS

          2  Education and Community Development. You will also

          3  hear this morning from Sharon Greenberger, who is

          4  CEO and President of the New York City School

          5  Construction Authority; Kenrick Ou, who is Manager,

          6  Site Acquisitions, for the New York City School

          7  Construction Authority, and Michael Sherwood, Client

          8  Program Manager for Shaw Environmental.

          9                 The New York City Construction

         10  Authority has undertaken the site selection process

         11  for the proposed Mott Haven School Campus that will

         12  be located on tax block 2443, portion of lot 78 and

         13  the Concourse Village section of the Bronx. The

         14  proposed school site is also located in Department

         15  of Education Region No. 9, Community School District

         16  No. 7 and Bronx Community Board No. 4. The proposed

         17  site contains approximately 290,000 square feet of

         18  lot area, a little more than six and half acres. The

         19  site is a vacant former rail yard owned by the City

         20  of New York under the jurisdiction of the Department

         21  of Education.

         22                 The site is bounded to the west by

         23  Concourse Village West; to the north by platforms

         24  containing PS 156 and IS 151; to the east, the MTA

         25  Metro North railroad right-of-way, and to the south,
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          2  the east 153rd Street Bridge.

          3                 Under the proposed plan, the SCA

          4  would construct a new school facility accommodating

          5  a total of four school organizations, three of which

          6  would be operated by the Department of Education.

          7  One, 573-seat intermediate and high school serving

          8  grades 6 through 12, and two 549-seat high schools

          9  serving grades 9 through 12. The fourth organization

         10  would be a 544-seat Charter school serving grades 5

         11  through 8.

         12                 The notice of filing for the site

         13  plan was published in the New York Post and the City

         14  Record on May 10th, 2005. Bronx Community Board No.

         15  4 was also notified of the site plan on May 10th,

         16  2005, and was asked to hold a public hearing on the

         17  proposed site plan.

         18                 Community Board No. 4 held its public

         19  hearing on the site plan on June 8th, 2005, but did

         20  not submit any written comments regarding the site

         21  plan. The City Planning Commission was also notified

         22  of the site plan on May 10th, 2005, and it has

         23  recommended in favor of the site.

         24                 The SCA has considered all comments

         25  received through its many meetings on the proposed

                                                            24

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON LANDMARKS

          2  site plan and affirms the site plan pursuant to

          3  Section 1731 of the Public Authorities Law. In

          4  accordance with Section 1732 of the Public

          5  Authorities Law, the SCA submitted the proposed site

          6  plan to the Mayor and Council on November 16, 2006.

          7  We look forward to your Subcommittee's favorable

          8  consideration of the site plan. Now, I would like to

          9  introduce Deputy Mayor Walcott.

         10                 DEPUTY MAYOR WALCOTT: Thank you very

         11  much, and good morning to all of you. It is a

         12  pleasure to be here.  And good morning, Chair

         13  Lappin, Council Member Arroyo and members of the

         14  Land Use Subcommittee. I am Dennis Walcott, Deputy

         15  Mayor for Education and Community Development. I am

         16  joined by Sharon Greenberger, President of the

         17  School Construction Authority and Kenrick Ou, who

         18  will join us in a little while who is the Site

         19  Acquisition Manager at the SCA.

         20                 The Mott Haven project cuts across

         21  both areas of my responsibilities, for me, both

         22  education and community development, and I thank you

         23  for the opportunity to speak with you today.

         24                 I, as well as staff from DOE, as well

         25  as the SCA, have already met with Council Member
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          2  Arroyo several times on this project to address her

          3  questions and concerns and look forward to our

          4  discussion today.

          5                 I'd also like to take this

          6  opportunity to thank the Council Member for being

          7  very forthright and direct around a number of issues

          8  that she has raised on behalf of the community and

          9  hopefully today and in future discussions, we can

         10  respond to those issues to make sure that all of the

         11  areas of concern have been addressed.

         12                 Two years ago, almost exactly to this

         13  day, Mayor Bloomberg, Chancellor Klein and I stood

         14  in the Bronx with members of the South Bronx

         15  Churches and other Bronx community members to

         16  announce of the most dynamic projects for this

         17  capital plan. The seven-acre Mott Haven site near

         18  the old Metro North Rail Yards stopped operating in

         19  the mid-20th century and was acquired by the City of

         20  New York in 1966. It was envisioned to house the

         21  South Bronx High Schools with 151 and 156 to the

         22  north. Our vision now is for an educational campus

         23  that will give children in the area an opportunity

         24  for rigorous education in the state-of-art

         25  facilities.
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          2                 The plan calls for construction of

          3  two high schools, one IS or Intermediate School High

          4  School and one Charter school serving grades five

          5  through eight that will serve in total approximately

          6  2,000 children. The four separate structures will

          7  each be equipped with their own innovative, modern

          8  amenities, including dedicated science rooms, art

          9  rooms and technology labs, and each will have its

         10  own cafeteria. The schools will share an auditorium,

         11  a 4,000 square foot library, music rooms, a dance

         12  studio, a student College and Career Resource Room,

         13  and spectacular athletic facilities that include

         14  exercise rooms, gymnasiums and a football field.

         15                 For a second, let me talk about the

         16  state of education in the Bronx briefly and then the

         17  City overall. The Bronx for too long has been home

         18  to large, comprehensive overcrowded high schools

         19  that have miserably failed our students.

         20                 Children of the Bronx have been

         21  attending sub-par schools for decades. For far too

         22  long, District 7, in particular, home of Mott Haven

         23  site and its neighbor to the north, District 9, have

         24  had few high quality, high options for its children.

         25                 As shown on the map we've prepared
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          2  for you, there are close to 10,000 sixth through

          3  12th graders who live in these districts, yet attend

          4  over-utilized schools in other communities.

          5                 They attend campuses such as Clinton,

          6  JFK, Walton, Columbus, Evander Childs, Lehman,

          7  Stevenson and Jane Addams High Schools, all schools

          8  and campuses which are over-capacity. Bronx families

          9  are now choosing some of these campuses because of

         10  the new small schools that have replaced the large

         11  failing comprehensive high schools as they are being

         12  phased out.

         13                 These new schools are now

         14  demonstrating positive results and are in high

         15  demand by students. In 2002, schools like Evander,

         16  Stevenson and Walton High Schools had average

         17  graduation rates of less than 40 percent. Beginning

         18  our secondary school reform efforts in the Bronx, we

         19  were able to turn these abysmal rates around and now

         20  these campuses have new small schools that are

         21  graduating close to 70 percent of their students.

         22                 Furthermore, the average attendance

         23  rate in 2002 was 76 percent at schools now being

         24  phased out, compared to the 2006 average attendance

         25  rate of 85 percent in schools that have been
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          2  replaced, or have replaced them.  Not only do the

          3  children of Mott Haven deserve an opportunity to

          4  achieve these same great results being provided by

          5  high quality educational options, that the

          6  opportunity is their right.

          7                 In preparing this five-year capital

          8  plan, demographic analyses showed an ever-growing

          9  population in the Bronx, and we projected a high

         10  school seat need of nearly 10,000 boroughwide. We

         11  have made great progress in siting schools in the

         12  Bronx and with the addition of the Mott Haven

         13  campus, we will achieve our goal of siting all the

         14  seats the Bronx needs to eliminate overcrowding over

         15  the next five to ten years. Without it, our children

         16  will continue to languish in inadequate and even

         17  poorer facilities.

         18                 Concerns about the number of students

         19  to be served and how it would affect safety have

         20  been raised in connection with this project. As you

         21  know, this Administration takes the safety of our

         22  students very seriously and we have made great

         23  strides in that area. Present here today is Rose

         24  Albanese-DePinto, who is the Senior Counselor for

         25  School Intervention and Development and she has been
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          2  working very diligently with NYPD and they have

          3  conferred and drawn up an internal and external

          4  safety plan for the schools at this campus so that

          5  there are protocols in place in the event any

          6  incident occurs.

          7                 During the course of this proposed

          8  project, I plan to meet with Council Members and

          9  other interested parties along with SCA staff, to

         10  ensure the open dialogue and to respond to any

         11  issues that may arise. We need to move forward with

         12  our aggressive $30 million remediation plan and

         13  construction now so that these seats can come online

         14  to be available for students for the start of the

         15  2009-2010 school year. Concerns have been raised

         16  also about the volume of students on the campus, but

         17  it is important to remind the Subcommittee that the

         18  campus will gradually grow over several years with

         19  400 students beginning in 2009.

         20                 In addition to that, concerns have

         21  been raised around the traffic flow of the area, and

         22  I just received a call this morning from our

         23  Department of Transportation that the requested

         24  traffic light that people have requested, including

         25  the community, will be installed, as well, to deal
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          2  with the traffic issues in the particular area.

          3                 This is the largest school capital

          4  plan this City has seen. The City Council has been a

          5  partner in shaping it, approving it three years ago.

          6  Furthermore, Mott Haven has been identified as a

          7  site in the last two amendments approved by both the

          8  Panel for Educational Policy and also the City

          9  Council.

         10                 Earlier this year, you will remember

         11  that we faced the possibility of not being able to

         12  build any of the schools, including Mott Haven,

         13  absent State funding. The Council, more than 30

         14  members, went to Brooklyn in February to testify

         15  before the Panel for Education Policy. You asked us

         16  to build the schools, to figure out a way even if

         17  the State money didn't materialize. We stood

         18  together, we lobbied, and after months of the

         19  capital plan being stalled because there was no

         20  money, the State came through with the capital

         21  remedy for the CFE suit and we were able to move

         22  forward. One of the lessons to all of us from this

         23  is that we cannot afford to squander precious

         24  opportunities to build schools for New York City

         25  school children.
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          2                 One of the things that I pledge to

          3  you today is to work cooperatively with you, to

          4  dialogue, to continue to meet, to address any issues

          5  that have been raised. In our conversations, a

          6  number of issues have been issued whether it is

          7  addressing remediation, whether it is addressing the

          8  issue of the size of the campus, whether it is the

          9  issue of the traffic flow, and we have tried to

         10  respond to each of those issues and we look forward

         11  to a continued dialogue in responding to those

         12  issues.

         13                 So I thank you for the opportunity to

         14  testify, and it is now my pleasure to introduce the

         15  SCA President, Sharon Greenberger.

         16                 MS. GREENBERGER: Good morning, Chair

         17  Lappin, Council Member Arroyo and members of the

         18  Land Use Subcommittee. As the Deputy Mayor has said,

         19  my name is Sharon Greenberger. I am President of the

         20  School Construction Authority, and I thank you for

         21  the opportunity to speak with you this morning about

         22  the Mott Haven project.

         23                 As the Deputy Mayor mentioned, siting

         24  schools in the Bronx is a critical element of the

         25  current five-year DOE capital plan. The City Council
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          2  has been supportive of other high school sites in

          3  the Bronx approved in this plan and we have worked

          4  closely with other Council Members to place schools

          5  across the borough.

          6                 Examples include the Bronx Studio

          7  School for Writers and Artists or Caseta Maria

          8  (phonetic), in Council Member Palma's district; New

          9  Settlement School in Council Member Foster's

         10  district; the former Mercy College site, which

         11  contains the Bronx School for the Visual Arts in

         12  Council Member Vacca's district and 362 in Council

         13  Member Seabrook's district.

         14                 In addition, between 2003 and 2005,

         15  we explored dozens of potential school sites in the

         16  Southern Bronx and looked in depth at 14 different

         17  sites in District 7, 8 and 9 or Regions 1 and 2. We

         18  have sited six schools to date in the southern

         19  section of the Bronx. Each of these schools adds

         20  critical seats to the Bronx. However, none of these

         21  sites could accommodate outdoor athletic fields

         22  given the space constraints that normally accompany

         23  school locations. Athletic fields are rare in new

         24  facilities. Our students need more physical

         25  education. The proposed Mott Haven campus provides
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          2  for a state-of-the-art athletic facility which will

          3  allow students to exercise and participate in

          4  intermural sports programs.

          5                 The development of this particular

          6  site requires no acquisition of property or

          7  displacement of existing uses to provide a full

          8  range of amenities for the students. This is an

          9  uncommon and unique opportunity. We have undertaken

         10  a comprehensive review of the projects' impacts as

         11  required by the State and Environmental Quality

         12  Review Act or SEQRA, which Kenrick Ou of the SCA

         13  will describe. We have also undertaken an extensive

         14  consultation process with local stakeholders,

         15  including the community board regarding the overall

         16  project, environmental remediation and broader

         17  environmental impacts.

         18                 We will perform a comprehensive

         19  remediation that will benefit the entire

         20  neighborhood. A remedial action work plan has been

         21  approved by the New York State Department of

         22  Environmental Conservation and the New York State

         23  Department of Health and will be implemented

         24  pursuant to their stringent and conservative

         25  guidelines to protect the health of the community
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          2  during remediation, assure that all contaminants are

          3  removed, and prove upon completion through an

          4  extensive testing program, the site is clean and

          5  safe for occupancy. Safety is of the utmost

          6  importance to us. Mike Sherwood of Shaw

          7  Environmental will testify further to the

          8  remediation plan.

          9                 We believe that this project presents

         10  an unique opportunity to provide an extraordinary

         11  learning and physical education environment for the

         12  children of the Bronx, as well as for the broader

         13  community, and we thank you for your consideration.

         14                 Now I would like to ask Kenrick Ou to

         15  join us.

         16                 MR. OU: Good morning, Chairperson

         17  Lappin, Council Member Arroyo and Council Members.

         18  My name is Kenrick Ou and I am the Site Acquisition

         19  Manager for the New York City School Construction

         20  Authority. My responsibilities include managing the

         21  environmental review and public review processes for

         22  the new sites that come before the City Council.

         23                 As Ross Holden and Sharon Greenberger

         24  previously mentioned, this project has undergone an

         25  extensive public consultation process. At this
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          2  point, I would like to share a few of the dates with

          3  you to indicate the extent of the work that we have

          4  done.

          5                 In addition to the initial

          6  announcement of the site on December 2, 2004, there

          7  was the notice of filing that initiated the public

          8  review and was published on May 10, 2005. We

          9  attended Community Board 4's public hearing on the

         10  site plan on June 8, 2005. Subsequent to that, and

         11  very specific to the issue of the environmental

         12  remediation plan, the SCA attended and participated

         13  in at least ten meetings with local stakeholders,

         14  including a presentation to schools PS 31, 156 and

         15  151 on March 7th, 2006, meetings with Cardinal Hayes

         16  High School on March 31, and a series of additional

         17  meetings in April, follow-up meetings with the

         18  churches, the UFT and the local schools.

         19                 This culminated on May 16, with the

         20  State Department of Environmental Conservation's

         21  public hearing to continue to accept comments on the

         22  proposed remedial action work plan, which was

         23  ultimately approved by the State on July 6, 2006.

         24                 In August, the SCA published the

         25  Draft Environmental Impact Statement, that included
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          2  the discussion of the remediation plan, as well as

          3  the broader impacts to traffic, air quality, noise

          4  and other areas.

          5                 Just to give you a quick overview.

          6  Since you have copies of the Final Environmental

          7  Impact Statement that was prepared and issued before

          8  you, I will summarize our environmental review

          9  process and the findings of that review.

         10                 The SCA's enabling legislation

         11  establishes the SCA as lead agency for compliance

         12  with SEQRA, which is the State Environmental Quality

         13  Review Act. As required under SEQRA, the SCA

         14  completed the extensive evaluation of both the

         15  potential impacts of the Mott Haven campus on the

         16  surrounding environment, as well as the impacts of

         17  the surrounding environment upon the students who

         18  would attend the campus schools.

         19                 Given the scale of this project, the

         20  SCA completed a full Environmental Impact Statement

         21  or EIS consistent with State requirements. The SCA

         22  retained AKRF as our environmental consultant to

         23  assist in this evaluation. The environment is

         24  defined very broadly, so the EIS included

         25  consideration of many areas, such as Land Use,
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          2  zoning and public policy, historic resources, urban

          3  design, visual resources, shadows, traffic and

          4  transportation, transit and pedestrians, air

          5  quality, noise, soil and groundwater conditions,

          6  infrastructure and solid waste, natural resources

          7  and construction-related impacts.

          8                 Now, the EIS process, which we began

          9  in August 2006, provides opportunity for full public

         10  consideration and discussion of the potential

         11  impacts of this project. Upon publication of the

         12  draft EIS on August 17, 2006, that document was also

         13  posted on the SCA website and printed copies were

         14  distributed of that report, which included the

         15  results of the analyses completed with respect to

         16  each of the areas I just mentioned.

         17                 The public was invited to comment on

         18  that draft EIS in writing and by spoken testimony at

         19  the public hearing the SCA held on September 6, 2006

         20  at PS 156. After the close of the public comment

         21  period on September 18, 2006, the SCA reviewed all

         22  of the comments that were received. Those comments

         23  were then summarized and are addressed in the final

         24  EIS you have before you, which was published on

         25  October 2, 2006. On November 6th, 2006, the SCA
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          2  issued it Statement of Findings under SEQRA, which

          3  concluded the environmental review process for this

          4  project.

          5                 Through the EIS project, the SCA

          6  found there could be significant impacts with

          7  respect to traffic and pedestrians, which I will

          8  discuss further. Mike Sherwood of Shaw Environmental

          9  who will follow me, will testify on the remediation

         10  plan for the soil and groundwater conditions which

         11  has been approved by the State under the State's

         12  Brownfield Clean-Up Program.

         13                 Significant traffic impacts could

         14  occur at seven intersections in the area surrounding

         15  the campus and a significant pedestrian impact could

         16  occur at the south crosswalk of East 161st Street

         17  and Concourse Village West.

         18                 However, signal timing adjustments

         19  would fully mitigate the traffic impacts at six of

         20  the seven intersections and widening the crosswalk

         21  by one foot would mitigate the pedestrian impact.

         22  The potential traffic and pedestrian impacts at the

         23  intersection of Concourse Village West and East

         24  153rd Street would be partially mitigated through

         25  measures that were already identified through
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          2  consultation with DOT and are identified within the

          3  final EIS. DOT is the agency that is building the

          4  new East 151rd Street bridge.

          5                 For example, DOT has agreed to

          6  install a barrier to prevent pedestrians from

          7  crossing East 153rd Street at Concourse Village West

          8  and DOT will install a new crosswalk at East 153rd

          9  Street and Grand Concourse to facilitate the safe

         10  travel of pedestrians to and from the campus. With

         11  the news that Deputy Mayor Walcott just shared about

         12  the agreement from DOT to install a traffic signal

         13  at that location, the traffic impacts at that

         14  intersection would be fully mitigated. That

         15  basically means that all of the environmental

         16  impacts that were identified, disclosed and

         17  addressed within the final EIS can be mitigated and

         18  those mitigation measures would be implemented as

         19  this project goes forward.

         20                 Now, in closing, I want to emphasize

         21  that the traffic and pedestrian impacts and the

         22  mitigation measures that were identified through the

         23  EIS process were based on a very conservative set of

         24  assumptions and estimates of what local conditions

         25  will be in several years time.
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          2                 For example, the impact analyses

          3  assumed a single arrival and dismissal time for all

          4  campus students. However, once open, the campus and

          5  its adjoining schools may adopt staggered arrival

          6  and dismissal times, which could disburse and lessen

          7  the impacts identified in the EIS.

          8                 Similarly, anticipated changes in the

          9  neighborhood, due to other planned projects, may not

         10  come to pass precisely as currently envisioned.

         11  That's why it has been the practice of the SCA and

         12  Department of Education to continue working with DOT

         13  and other City agencies even after completion of the

         14  EIS process. We have and will continue to consult

         15  and cooperate with our agency colleagues to refine

         16  and implement all necessary and appropriate traffic

         17  and pedestrian mitigation measures. Thank you very

         18  much.

         19                 MR. SHERWOOD: Good morning, Committee

         20  Members.  My name is Michael Sherwood from Shaw

         21  Environmental and Infrastructure. I am a consultant

         22  to the SCA. Approximately two years ago, my company

         23  was hired to investigate the Mott Haven site and

         24  determine if there is any environmental concerns and

         25  impacts to the subsurface as a result of the

                                                            41

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON LANDMARKS

          2  historical uses of the site. The SCA performed a

          3  Phase I investigation, which is essentially a file

          4  search to determine what the past uses of the site

          5  were, and the results of that investigation were

          6  that the site was a former rail yard for over 100

          7  years and that there was a manufactured gas plant

          8  close to the site from roughly 1891 to 1946. There

          9  is also a gas station identified adjacent to the

         10  site at Concourse Village West and East 156th

         11  Street, which had the potential to impact this site.

         12                 With that, Shaw conducted a

         13  comprehensive investigation of not only the Mott

         14  Haven site, but also the area underneath PS 156 and

         15  IS 151. As Ross had mentioned earlier, those two

         16  schools are on platforms roughly 30 feet in the air

         17  allowing access beneath them to conduct

         18  investigations below there. There was also

         19  investigations done on the surrounding streets of

         20  Concourse Village West and East 156th Street to

         21  determine any impacts off site.

         22                 All of that investigation was roughly

         23  150 borings completed for soil, groundwater, and

         24  soil gas analysis. What we found as a result of our

         25  investigation was that the northwest corner of the
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          2  Mott Haven site was impacted from the manufactured

          3  gas plant and from the off-site gas station. In

          4  addition, there was a small area under PS 156,

          5  roughly 50 x 60, that was also impacted from these

          6  historical items. The area affected is roughly one

          7  acre in size on the seven-acre site.

          8                 At the completion of the remedial

          9  investigation, we entered into the Brownfields

         10  Clean-up Program with the New York State Department

         11  of Conservation and developed a plan to clean up the

         12  site called the "Remedial Action Work Plan." The

         13  basic elements of that plan are to install hydraulic

         14  barriers on the upgradient sides of the site to

         15  block that upgradient contamination that were

         16  identified from the adjacent gas station from coming

         17  onto the site after we begin our remediation to sort

         18  of protect the site from any future contamination.

         19                 After that, the soil that was

         20  identified as impacted at the site will be excavated

         21  under tent structures. The purpose of the tent is to

         22  contain the work area in order to create negative

         23  pressure and to contain any dust or vapors that

         24  might be generated as a result of excavating the

         25  contaminated soil from the site. In total, there
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          2  will be 19,000 cubic yards of soil removed and down

          3  to a depth of approximately 13 feet.

          4                 I mentioned before that as part of

          5  our investigation, we identified upgradient

          6  contamination in Concourse Village West resulting

          7  from that former gas station.

          8                 Our work, our remediation does not

          9  include the clean up of that area. But as a result

         10  of our investigation, we have identified that

         11  contamination to the New York State Department of

         12  Health and New York State Department of

         13  Environmental Conservation and they are currently

         14  investigating that spill as we speak. And they will

         15  clean up that spill, as well, as part of their work.

         16                 After the 19,000 cubic yards of soil

         17  are excavated, it will be backfilled with clean fill

         18  material. All of the contaminated soil will be

         19  trucked off site to a regulated deposal facility.

         20  Any areas that aren't treated or of the site that

         21  are left exposed, once the site is developed will be

         22  covered with a two-foot clean soil cap as an added

         23  safeguard to just provide an additional barrier

         24  between the site and the underlying soils.

         25                 I mentioned before that there is a
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          2  small area under PS 156 identified as being

          3  contaminated. It is roughly 50 by 60 feet in areas.

          4  So it is relatively small compared to the clean up

          5  area on the Mott Haven site. But again, I need to

          6  stress this contaminated area is not immediately

          7  below PS 156. PS 156 does not rest on top of this

          8  contaminated soil. There is roughly a 30-foot air

          9  gap because the schools are built on platforms which

         10  provides a buffer between the Mott Haven site and

         11  the contaminated soil and the schools above.

         12                 With that, the reason I mentioned

         13  that is that there is no vehicle of exposure when

         14  there is no contact between the building and the

         15  subsurface soils. When we presented this remedial

         16  action work plan to the New York State Department of

         17  Health and Department of Environmental Conservation,

         18  they approved it with little comment.  They felt

         19  that it was one of the more comprehensive plans they

         20  have seen. They felt that we were using

         21  state-of-the-art technology and we are really going

         22  about this clean-up very aggressively.

         23                 Opponents of the plan have said that

         24  the remedial plan is inadequate. But I have yet to

         25  see anything presented in the form of a report or a
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          2  plan which would counter our plan or would provide a

          3  more comprehensive plan.

          4                 Another thing that I would like to

          5  mention is that once the remediation is complete,

          6  that's not the end of the process. At that point,

          7  there were confirmatory borings collected in samples

          8  to confirm that the remediation was effective and

          9  complete. That will be overseen by the New York

         10  State Department of Environmental Conservation.

         11                 Another thing that I would just like

         12  to mention is that this site has been contaminated

         13  probably since the late 1800s, by our estimates. It

         14  has been vacant since roughly the 1970s. In my

         15  opinion, I think there has been probably been

         16  developers who have looked at this site in the past

         17  and passed it by because of the extensive

         18  remediation required. My client, the School

         19  Construction Authority, has a plan here to clean up

         20  this site and they are volunteering to do so.

         21                 I would like to mention one other

         22  thing. The remediation has not yet begun. Right now,

         23  the work that is going at the site is primarily

         24  structural in nature. They are shoring up a

         25  retaining wall that lies along the western side of
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          2  the site. And the remediation will begin once that

          3  work is complete. Thank you very much.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you. I was

          5  one of the 30 Council Members who testified at the

          6  Panel for Educational Policy because we desperately

          7  need schools, not just in the Bronx, but in all five

          8  boroughs, and the issue today is where these schools

          9  go. This is a toxic site. We need to be able to look

         10  every parent in the eye and tell them that their

         11  child is going to be safe on this site and isn't

         12  going to get a learning disability or some

         13  health-related problem just because they are going

         14  to school.

         15                 I want to ask a couple of questions

         16  about the environmental remediation. I know you

         17  testified that there has been a State DEC approved

         18  plan. That said, there have been a number of

         19  criticisms raised by the community and by

         20  environmental consultants about the plan. One

         21  involving long-term maintenance and monitoring of

         22  the site, to be able to ensure that we are not

         23  working on this now and then once the kids are

         24  there, nobody is paying any attention. If somebody

         25  could speak to that?
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          2                 MR. SHERWOOD: As part of the

          3  Brownfield's Clean-Up Program, there is a

          4  requirement to issue something called a "Site

          5  Management Plan" once the remediation is complete.

          6  And that lays out basically your plan to observe the

          7  site, to monitor it, to ensure that your remediation

          8  remains effective, that the engineering controls

          9  that have been implemented remain effective

         10  throughout the occupancy of the building. That might

         11  include such things as inspecting the cap every year

         12  to ensure that any asphalt surfaces and clean soil

         13  caps remain intact and have not been broken

         14  throughout the school year.

         15                 They also require monitoring of the

         16  subsurface in some capacity and also the engineering

         17  controls for the buildings such as subslab

         18  depressization systems, will be monitored as well.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: I want to hear

         20  clearly, because you are speaking in a lot of

         21  technical terms, that there will be, and I think I

         22  heard you say this, for as long as this building is

         23  occupied, monitoring of the site?

         24                 MR. SHERWOOD: That's correct. The

         25  Site Management Plan remains in effect indefinitely.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: What is the Site

          3  Management Plan? What does that mean?

          4                 MR. SHERWOOD: It's part of this

          5  Brownfield Clean-Up Program and essentially, it is

          6  the DEC's tool to ensure that the party that has

          7  agreed to clean it up continues to report to them,

          8  continues to tell them how the site is doing with

          9  regard to the effectiveness of their remediation and

         10  of the engineering controls.

         11                 DEPUTY MAYOR WALCOTT: Just if I may,

         12  Madam Chair, this will outlive this Administration.

         13  So it will be in place beyond our term in office.

         14  And in addition to that, while I definitely will not

         15  speak in technical terms, we have understood that

         16  the community has identified a potential group to

         17  work with the SCA and our consultant in trying to

         18  really deal with the issue, so they have

         19  representatives at the table, as well. We are

         20  willing, through the Councilwoman, to talk to any

         21  particular interested party to see how we can

         22  develop that collaborative relationship.

         23                 Just to reinforce enforce the point

         24  that was made, we are very interested also in making

         25  sure, not just with the immediate remediation, but
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          2  addressing the concerns from the parents of the

          3  community throughout the term of the school being

          4  there, that there is ongoing information and that

          5  the school is in compliance with the State and the

          6  City's code.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Okay. There have

          8  been toxic soil and chemicals found, not just on

          9  this site, but as you testified adjacent to the

         10  property. I'm not clear what remediation is going to

         11  be done in terms of 156 and 151 which I think are to

         12  the north.

         13                 MR. SHERWOOD: I'm sorry. I didn't get

         14  into that in detail. The 50 by 60 foot area under PS

         15  156, again, below that 30 foot gap that was

         16  identified as contaminated, is going to be treated

         17  through a process called in situ solidification, and

         18  not to get back into the technical realm, but

         19  basically what that means is that borings will be

         20  completed, injecting sort of a concrete into the

         21  ground to essentially change the soil into a large

         22  concrete block so that it is completely immobile and

         23  cannot be accessed, cannot be handled, cannot be

         24  moved. The reason that we are using in situ

         25  solidification as the technology, rather than
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          2  excavation, which was the plan for Mott Haven site,

          3  is that, as we said before PS 156 and IS 151 are on

          4  platforms. They are supported on columns which are

          5  on piles, and to dig around those structural

          6  features, those piles, could potentially undermine

          7  the structure and create a structural failure. So,

          8  digging out the contamination was not an option in

          9  this particular case. So we went to in situ

         10  solidification for the area under 156.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Okay. I hope that

         12  no matter what happens with this site selection that

         13  we deal with the land that's impacting the kids who

         14  are already in the area. But I want to, before I ask

         15  anymore questions, give Council Member Arroyo a

         16  chance to ask some questions.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO: Thank you,

         18  Madam Chair. That leads me into my first comment. It

         19  is not a question. That regardless of what gets

         20  built on this site, the land has to be cleaned up.

         21  What has happened in the past is in the past. We

         22  know today that there is a problem, then today we

         23  need to make sure that we do something about dealing

         24  with it. Not only on this site, and this is a

         25  broader conversation that has to come out of this
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          2  issue, how often are we going to have to sit here

          3  and in siting subcommittee public hearing to deal

          4  with the issue of siting a public facility on

          5  contaminated land?

          6                 Do we know what the issue, how

          7  expensive it is, not just in my district, but in the

          8  City as a whole? How are we going to engage in a

          9  conversation, Administration, the City Council, the

         10  agencies affected on long-term planning to resolve

         11  the issue of contaminated soil in our City?  Do we

         12  understand what the issues that residents who live

         13  close to contaminated land have to deal with? Do we

         14  know what the long-term health impacts are? We don't

         15  know the answer to any of those questions. We don't

         16  know what the dollar amount is for us to have to

         17  deal with that problem and we need to get a handle

         18  on it. So I certainly hope that out of this comes a

         19  broader agenda on how to deal with contaminated land

         20  throughout the City, not just this site. Inevitably

         21  we are going to have this conversation over and over

         22  again, and today is the 17th Council district and

         23  tomorrow is going to be somewhere else, but we are

         24  going to have this conversation again. And we

         25  shouldn't have to wait until a project comes up so
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          2  that we deal on a project-by-project basis. That's

          3  just not good planning for the City long term.

          4                 Deputy Mayor, you testified that

          5  children in the Bronx have been attending sub-par

          6  schools for decades. That's an incredible statement.

          7  And that we have had few high-quality school options

          8  for our children. Whose fault is that? Where does

          9  that responsibility lie?

         10                 Together with that question, you

         11  mentioned a great deal of successes in the small

         12  school environments, that I may add, most of which

         13  are sited in my district. So we are saying two

         14  different things. We are on the right path with the

         15  small school environment, but the schools in my

         16  district are sub-par. I don't understand. That is a

         17  contradiction.

         18                 DEPUTY MAYOR WALCOTT: Not

         19  necessarily, Councilwoman. What I was referring to

         20  were the decades of unfortunate sub-par performance

         21  in just not the Bronx but throughout the City. The

         22  facts speaks for themselves, as far as schools at

         23  the campuses or the schools that I identified

         24  earlier that had graduation rates below 40 percent,

         25  had attendance rates at 76 percent. What we tried to

                                                            53

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON LANDMARKS

          2  do when this Administration came into office was to

          3  tackle those issues directly, and as a result are

          4  trying to tackle it in working with the members of

          5  the Council, both locally as well as the City

          6  Council overall, as well as other stakeholders, to

          7  reform the system, to put new small schools in

          8  place. And as I indicated, if you take a look at the

          9  comparative numbers, as far as the small school

         10  graduation rates, and the schools that were there

         11  before them, you see a tremendous increase in both

         12  the attendance, as well as the graduation rates. So,

         13  I don't think it is contradictory.

         14                 Quite frankly, I think if you use

         15  Walton as an example, Walton as a stand-alone school

         16  had had a record that was abysmal for a period of

         17  time. As a result of breaking up into the smaller

         18  schools within the Walton campus, we have been able

         19  to increase the graduation rates. We have been able

         20  to increase the attendance rates and we are seeing

         21  that throughout the City. And what we are proposing

         22  for this particular campus is just that type of

         23  model, building a campus of small schools within a

         24  campus environment. We have done that successfully

         25  now, and we just announced something back in
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          2  September, the opening of the Bath Gate Campus,

          3  where we have small schools in Bath Gate area that

          4  are now going to have students probably, maybe up to

          5  500 students in each school and you will have a

          6  campus environment, if I remember correctly, and I

          7  will defer to Sharon, will have roughly 1,700

          8  students, 1,600 students at Bath Gate?

          9                 Again, small schools built on a

         10  campus model where there is some shared facilities,

         11  where you economize on cost. One of the things we

         12  did not talk about as part of our reform efforts was

         13  we are trying to make sure that we build efficient

         14  schools, as well. Taking a look at the price per

         15  square foot before we came into office that was

         16  really ranging anywhere from $435 to $450 per square

         17  foot, now we are bringing schools in, that is

         18  obviously going a little higher, based on the

         19  increase of steel and other manufacturing items, but

         20  the price ranges anywhere from $395 to $425 now in

         21  2006 dollars. We are not trying to send out a

         22  contradictory message.

         23                 What we are proposing is developing a

         24  campus that will have an athletic field, which is

         25  extremely rare, not just in the Bronx, but
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          2  throughout the City, to have enough space for an

          3  athletic field, and also share space with the four

          4  schools to really have a common use of cafeteria and

          5  some libraries. So, our goals are the same in

          6  putting small schools in place, using a campus

          7  environment.  And one of the other pieces, and I

          8  think Sharon may have touched on it, we are looking

          9  at roughly, or Ross may have touched on it, 290,000

         10  square feet. We are looking at seven acres, six and

         11  half to seven acres of space which is an unusual

         12  situation, and again we put in place a very

         13  aggressive remediation plan where we are going to

         14  correct the ills of the past and have a plan that

         15  will have State approval, not just addressing the

         16  immediate remediation, but making sure there is

         17  monitoring moving forward, as well.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO: We are talking

         19  about facilities and students having good

         20  state-of-the-art facility to learn in. So your

         21  statement about children in the Bronx, that was your

         22  testimony, so that's what I focused on, have been

         23  attending sub-par schools for decades. We are

         24  talking about the programs contained within the four

         25  walls of the facilities. It is not the facilities,
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          2  the schools themselves, the buildings that are a

          3  problem. What is it that you are saying? Sub-par

          4  how?

          5                 DEPUTY MAYOR WALCOTT: Both the

          6  facilities, as well as the teaching and learning

          7  that had been taking place in the past. Again, the

          8  results speak for themselves, as far as the rates of

          9  graduation.  And then as we have indicated in the

         10  past, not just in the Bronx, but throughout the

         11  City, the average age of a school is roughly now 63

         12  years of age. And so we need to make sure that we

         13  continue to construct new models and the new models

         14  of schools that we are building, the facilities that

         15  are you referring to, will house the smallest school

         16  campuses in place. So you will have schools that

         17  average anywhere from 500 to 600 to 800 students per

         18  school itself. So, it is a combination of both

         19  having state-of-the-art facilities that really allow

         20  our students to do 21st century work, but also

         21  making sure that we have as many amenities as

         22  possible for the students to participate in, as

         23  indicated, the athletic fields, making sure we have

         24  up-to-date computer systems in place. And that's

         25  what this building program is about and that's what
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          2  the Mott Haven campus will allow us to do.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO: I think that

          4  the 17th Council District has benefitted

          5  tremendously from the small school environment. You

          6  will get no argument from me on that end. Actually,

          7  recently we were just at a celebration so-to-speak

          8  for the new century schools and the monies that the

          9  Council made available to continue to fund the

         10  organizations, the partners of the schools, and

         11  Council Member Comrie chastised me because most of

         12  the schools are in my district.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: I don't have

         14  any. I'm jealous.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO: And there are

         16  programs that I know are very successful that the

         17  graduation rate of the programs are very high. The

         18  things that we are striving for together, the

         19  Council and the Administration and the Department as

         20  well. Understand that this not about a disagreement

         21  on the concept of that smaller schools work better.

         22  I think we can all agree on that. The concern here,

         23  and I'm going to bring it back to the technical

         24  issue, blanket statements around environment clean

         25  up and if you talk to me about cleaning house, I can
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          2  probably understand better because that's what I do.

          3  But I, and those who have the concerns around the

          4  environmental clean-up issue and the program or the

          5  plan that is suggested here is a problem for us to

          6  understand.

          7                 My request here is that we take a

          8  step back and engage in a conversation to enable

          9  those of us who have very serious concerns about

         10  whether or not this is going to work, whether or not

         11  this plan is going to address the concerns in the

         12  community, has to happen. While you read off a

         13  number of individuals and groups that you met with,

         14  and when I say you, I mean Department of Education,

         15  the School Construction Authority, I put it on the

         16  record that my first meeting about this project was

         17  held at the Bronx Borough President's Office because

         18  the Bronx Borough President requested a meeting with

         19  School Construction Authority and DOE. Because we

         20  were getting back information from the community

         21  about the concerns around the project.

         22                 So, while individuals in the

         23  community may or may not have been included, I was

         24  not included in the conversation and I have been in

         25  office almost two years. It is hard for me, as a
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          2  City Council Member that represents that district,

          3  to sit here and listen to you say that all the

          4  stakeholders have been involved in this conversation

          5  because that is not the case.

          6                 (Applause.)

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO: Let's not do

          8  that because we don't want to choose sides here. We

          9  are having a very serious conversation.

         10                 How many sites has School

         11  Construction Authority disqualified as a site for

         12  schools because of land contamination?

         13                 MS. GREENBERGER: We look very closely

         14  at sites and we have in the past disqualified sites

         15  for environmental considerations. Sometimes it is

         16  because of the extent of the contamination and

         17  sometimes it is because of the cost associated with

         18  remediation. I think we have looked at one or two in

         19  the Bronx that has been disqualified for those

         20  reasons. There are others that we go ahead with and

         21  we conduct that kind of remediation and move forward

         22  on.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO: Here again

         24  comes the problem. You know more than we do and

         25  therein lies the problem. There is a very serious
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          2  trust factor here. A problem of community not

          3  trusting what you are telling us, and we need to

          4  deal with that. Although the State has approved the

          5  plan, there have been instances where the State has

          6  approved the plan and subsequently the school had to

          7  be closed because there was an environmental issue

          8  identified at that site. So that the State has

          9  approved the plan doesn't make me feel better

         10  knowing the history of what's happened with

         11  environmental clean-up at sites where schools were

         12  placed and what subsequently happened after the

         13  clean-up was done. Again, an issue of trust and

         14  understanding and making sure that whatever happens

         15  there is the best possible thing that can be done.

         16  We all understand that cost is a problem. But the

         17  life and well-being of the children and the staff

         18  who occupy those buildings, in my opinion, is

         19  priceless.

         20                 MS. GREENBERGER: We share the

         21  sentiments.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO: And should not

         23  have to bear the burnt of us making a decision today

         24  that we find out tomorrow was not a very good one.

         25  And that we're seeing parents whose child has
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          2  developed seizures since starting attending a

          3  particular school or a child who has never had

          4  asthma and entered kindergarten in September and has

          5  been treated in the emergency room 16 times with

          6  severe asthma attacks because he started attending a

          7  school that may be a problem. We have no way of

          8  knowing the extent and no commitment about what we

          9  are going to do about it.

         10                 DEPUTY MAYOR WALCOTT: Council Member,

         11  if I may, we totally agree with you. The safety and

         12  the health of the children obviously are extremely

         13  important for us, as well. I just would like to take

         14  a couple of seconds to address the issue of trust

         15  and collaboration, in that we truly desire to have

         16  the trust of the community and all the people who

         17  are involved and this process and any process that

         18  DOE and the SCA may be involved in. We have an

         19  example where back, I guess two years ago, with

         20  Story Avenue, where there were a number of issues

         21  that were raised also around environment. We sat

         22  down and met with various stakeholders to work out a

         23  plan that satisfied both the people who were

         24  involved in discussions and a somewhat similar model

         25  in working with the group to work with the SCA along
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          2  that line.

          3                 It is not our goal to try to force

          4  something through, but at the same time, we desire

          5  to make sure that we have a program that allows for

          6  the construction to take place in a fashion as

          7  approved both by the State and the panel for

          8  education policy and the other stakeholders to make

          9  sure we have enough seats in place for the Bronx.

         10                 So, it is our goal to always work in

         11  collaboration and when you talk about trust, it is

         12  our goal to build a trusting relationship. As you

         13  and I have talked about, there are going to be

         14  issues where we agree and some we don't agree. But

         15  at the same time, we don't want to close the door to

         16  communication as well in reaching some form of

         17  consensus. But again, with the State approval of the

         18  remediation plan and the dedication by the

         19  Administration of $30 million and having an

         20  extensive plan in place that will not just deal with

         21  the immediate, but will deal with the future as

         22  well, we feel that we have laid something out that

         23  will once and for all address the environmental

         24  concerns that this piece of parcel that has been

         25  there for 40 years without any type of a plan being
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          2  addressed and this Administration is going to take

          3  that plan on in making sure that we are do it to the

          4  satisfaction, hopefully, of yourself and the members

          5  of the community so we have a safe environment for

          6  the children that will also benefit the students at

          7  156, as well as 151.

          8                 MS. GREENBERGER: Can I just add that

          9  over the last five years the SCA has developed and

         10  empowered in an internal industry environmental

         11  hygiene unit designed specifically to deal with

         12  environmental issues that takes very seriously these

         13  kinds of concerns, works very closely within the

         14  schools, with our consultants, with our contractors

         15  to look at issues, respond immediately to concerns

         16  that are raised so that we are as responsive as

         17  possible to these concerns as they come up.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO: Madam Chair,

         19  I'm going to stop. I can take the rest of the

         20  morning. I want to make a request of the authority

         21  and Administration and that whatever work is being

         22  done at this site, stop. There are many concerns

         23  around the impact, the environmental impact of

         24  what's happening currently with the work that is

         25  being done. Complaints of lot of dust found on the
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          2  vehicles surrounding the site, that residents of the

          3  Concourse Village Development are not able to open

          4  their windows if their windows face south. It is a

          5  real serious issue and we need to get a handle on

          6  whatever is happening there. The clean up has to be

          7  done but we need to ensure that we are safeguarding

          8  the safety and well-being of the people that live

          9  there and the children that are attending the

         10  schools, the early childhood program windows are on

         11  the first floor of PS 156 and they face the

         12  construction site.

         13                 Thank you, Madam Chair.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: I wanted to

         15  acknowledge that we have been joined by Council

         16  Member Rosie Mendez and Council Member John Liu who

         17  are both members of the Committee. Before I turn it

         18  over to Council Member Katz, I just wanted to ask, I

         19  keep hearing that there is a State approved plan in

         20  place; it is my understanding that the Brownfield

         21  program has different levels or tracks that can be

         22  applied for. And that on this project, SCA chose to

         23  apply for the least protective track, track four,

         24  which requires the least amount of clean-up, meaning

         25  that DEC could approve a plan even if it doesn't
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          2  comply with the highest possible clean-up standards

          3  that exist; is that true?

          4                 MR. OU: This Brownfield site is under

          5  track four and the other tracks are primarily used

          6   -- the DEC was asked this question at a previous

          7  public meeting, as well. Really, in cases where you

          8  want to grow crops on the land, where you want to

          9  actually use the soil for some form of consumption,

         10  or you want to take groundwater from the site for

         11  consumption, then you would apply for the more

         12  stringent tracks.

         13                 In this particular case, the DEC felt

         14  that track four was appropriate, and that doesn't

         15  mean that the remediation is not completely thorough

         16  and doesn't address all the issues. It is just you

         17  have to look at the objective and the use of the

         18  site.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Okay. We're not

         20  going to grow crops on this land, I understand that.

         21  But there are going to be kids running around on the

         22  site. So, I guess I want to know, because when I

         23  read that we're not doing everything by the books

         24  that we could be doing, that we're doing enough.

         25                 MR. SHERWOOD: With regard, you
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          2  mentioned kids running around on the site, I mean

          3  one thing to keep in mind here is that the

          4  contamination that was identified is below the

          5  surface. The soil that was impacted by that gas

          6  station and by that former manufactured gas plant,

          7  that contamination starts about four feet down,

          8  there is some historic fill at the site that's

          9  typical of any urban environment and I mentioned

         10  before a two-foot clean soil cap.

         11                 In addition, to digging up all the

         12  soil, removing it from the site, backfilling with

         13  clean, in addition to that, all surfaces will be

         14  covered with either asphalt, or some sort of surface

         15  that doesn't allow access to the subsurface. Even

         16  though it is going to be dug up and it is going to

         17  be cleaned, there is engineering controls in place

         18  that don't allow contact with the subsurface

         19  directly and I think that's important to note.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Okay.

         21                 I did want ask about 1880 Bartow

         22  Avenue, because that was a site that was considered

         23  and disregarded because of a high probability for

         24  subsurface contamination. So, we know there is

         25  contamination on this site. The Bartow Avenue site
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          2  had a probability. Why was that removed from

          3  consideration?

          4                 MS. GREENBERGER: This is a site that

          5  actually did have environmental contamination and

          6  again, we look at a couple of factors when we look

          7  at sites. One is the extent of the contamination and

          8  one is the cost-effective measure of remediation. In

          9  this particular instance, on the Bartow site, given

         10  that it was a site that was only feasible for a

         11  fewer number of students, it was not considered to

         12  be cost effective to remediate. The cost of

         13  remediation would be extraordinarily high.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: What does that

         15  mean? What are we spending to remediate this site

         16  versus what we have spent to remediate that site?

         17                 MS. GREENBERGER: In the end, we will

         18  spend nearly $30 million to remediate this site. I

         19  don't have the specific numbers on the Bartow site.

         20  I think in terms on a cost comparison it would have

         21  been higher.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Well, I guess I

         23  would just say that it seems an odd reason to

         24  eliminate a possibility when you are facing the same

         25  circumstances at the site that was chosen and I
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          2  understand the site that was chosen is a much larger

          3  site. But that brings along the other problems, like

          4  traffic and public safety that we have been

          5  discussing today.

          6                 DEPUTY MAYOR WALCOTT: But again with

          7  this site, I hopefully have been able to address the

          8  issue of traffic and safety and as part of a

          9  comprehensive plan, and I understand the question as

         10  far as why one and not the other. But again, I think

         11  with both not just the size, but the ability to

         12  respond to the concerns that have been raised around

         13  the traffic and as addressed through EIS, how we are

         14  going to respond to that, and also the safety issue,

         15  again, I think we have a very comprehensive plan

         16  both internally and externally to address the safety

         17  of the particular area, as well, that would really

         18  address those particular concerns that you just

         19  raised.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Council Member

         21  Katz.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Good afternoon.

         23  Thank you for your extensive testimony. I have a few

         24  quick questions, if I can. First, for Ms.

         25  Greenberger, and just for the record, I know Sharon
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          2  Greenberger from Dan Doctroff's office, right? I

          3  found her to be very responsive and good there. So,

          4  I want to welcome her to this job and we look

          5  forward to working with you in the future.

          6                 1880 Bartow Avenue was one of the

          7  sites that was rejected for contamination, was there

          8  another one? We can't really, from the EIS just as a

          9  quick perusal, I wasn't sure which site.

         10                 MS. GREENBERGER: Not that were looked

         11  at in the last couple of years, as far as I know.

         12  Just that one.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Yes, in your

         14  testimony you said one or two sites were rejected

         15  for contamination or because it was too much money

         16  to remediate. My question is which were the one or

         17  two sites and how much was it to remediate. If you

         18  don't have it, if you can get it to us, that would

         19  be great.

         20                 MS. GREENBERGER: I will take a look

         21  into it. I think I was specifically talking about

         22  southern Bronx versus other areas. So we will look

         23  at the --

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: It's not these

         25  schools, these areas?
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          2                 MS. GREENBERGER: Bartow was one.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Bartow was one.

          4  Yes, if you could just get to us the other site, if

          5  there is one, and how much it would cost for both of

          6  them to be remediated, that would be great.

          7                 MS. GREENBERGER: We'll look into it

          8  when we get back.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Thanks.

         10                 Most of the issues that I have had

         11  with school sitings and different issues with the

         12  Department of Education really has come from

         13  disagreements, right or wrong on both sides, with

         14  the Department of Education, and I do think that

         15  SCA, although there are responsible for the bids and

         16  building and all of that, I think a lot of the stuff

         17  that we are talking about does come from the DOE

         18  over to the SCA. I need to ask a question, which

         19  clearly I've had years of discussion with the

         20  Department of Education about, but I do need to ask

         21  it here, which is I see there are two high schools,

         22  a junior high school and a charter school; can you

         23  tell us where the children are going to come from

         24  that go to those schools?

         25                 DEPUTY MAYOR WALCOTT: Well, the high
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          2  schools, the normal application process. The

          3  majority of the students will come from either the

          4  immediate area or the surrounding communities, and I

          5  can also get you more detailed information. I know

          6  the first campus that would open, if approved, would

          7  be the South Bronx High Schools, which is currently

          8  located in another building that would move over.

          9  So, those would be the initial 400 students that

         10  would come into the campus itself and then the

         11  others would start with 130 (give or take) students

         12  for each of the other schools and with any type of

         13  charter school, it is through a lottery system.

         14  Again, I can give you the details, Councilwoman, as

         15  far as the process. But again, this is to address

         16  both the need in the immediate area, but also

         17  dealing with the borough overcrowding, as well.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: How many kids in

         19  the high school, the two high schools?

         20                 MS. GREENBERGER: There are 550-seat

         21  high school seats.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: So it is 1,100

         23  kids.

         24                 MS. GREENBERGER: About 1,100 plus --

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: And so 400 of
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          2  them will come from the South Bronx High School?

          3                 MS. GREENBERGER: The first school

          4  will be the Bronx Leadership Academy and the

          5  majority of the students who attend that school come

          6  from the neighborhoods. So we would imagine we would

          7  see a similar pattern.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: When you say

          9  neighborhood, do you mean locally zoned or

         10  district-wide zoned or borough zoned? What is the

         11  radius about? That's really more a DOE question, I

         12  think?

         13                 DEPUTY MAYOR WALCOTT: Yes. I mean, we

         14  can get you that information.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Can you get?

         16                 DEPUTY MAYOR WALCOTT: Sure.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: More

         18  importantly, I think, the Councilwoman Arroyo and I

         19  mean I'd like to see it also and I'm sure the Chair

         20  would also, I think we need to know that. That's

         21  400, what about the rest of the 700 kids, who then

         22  are going to come from.

         23                 DEPUTY MAYOR WALCOTT: The normal

         24  application process and they would have the ability

         25  to apply like all the high schools.

                                                            73

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON LANDMARKS

          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: From Citywide?

          3                 DEPUTY MAYOR WALCOTT: It would be

          4  borough-wide and Citywide. But the application

          5  process opens up with the top 12, I think, they can

          6  choose and then it would be ranking process and the

          7  selection would take place in that manner.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Basically, it is

          9  400 locally zoned from the kids there and that would

         10  come from South Bronx.

         11                 DEPUTY MAYOR WALCOTT: I didn't say

         12  locally zoned, though.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: My understanding

         14  is coming from the high school and then the majority

         15  of those children are coming from the surrounding

         16  area within a certain mile radius.

         17                 DEPUTY MAYOR WALCOTT: But through the

         18  normal application process. It is not a locally

         19  zoned process.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: So the 400 kids

         21  that are coming from this other high school would

         22  not have a right to go here either. They would have

         23  to apply like everybody else basically.

         24                 DEPUTY MAYOR WALCOTT: Right. It is

         25  not locally zoned.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: What dictates

          3  whether those children would be able to go to this

          4  school? What is the distinction between those 400

          5  kids that are in Council Member Arroyo's area and

          6  the 700 kids that have to Citywide apply, what would

          7  make the distinction, and what makes these 400 kids

          8  have an edge basically because they have a right to

          9  go here, if it is not locally zoned?

         10                 DEPUTY MAYOR WALCOTT: Let me attempt

         11  to do this without having DOE next to me. But the

         12  distinction of these students is that these students

         13  are already in a school and they are in a school

         14  building and then they would move over to this new

         15  site. But the application process, and I can stand

         16  to be corrected, is the normal application process

         17  that any high school student and parent would go

         18  through, as far as ranking their preference of

         19  schools, and then selecting those schools in the

         20  normal process before choosing a high school. I

         21  think that's my impression.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: So the children,

         23  not children, they are high school, right?  The

         24  people that are at the South Bronx High School have

         25  a right to go to the new school at Mott?
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          2                 DEPUTY MAYOR WALCOTT: They would have

          3  a new building, a new campus

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: They would have

          5  the ability to switch over. But once those kids are

          6  aged out or graduate, those 400 seats end up also

          7  being Citywide basically?

          8                 DEPUTY MAYOR WALCOTT: Basically.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: There is no

         10  longer a preference for those kids. So it is

         11  basically grandfathered for just the kids that are

         12  now in that school.

         13                 And the junior high school?

         14                 DEPUTY MAYOR WALCOTT: That I don't

         15  have an answer to.

         16                 MS. GREENBERGER: I don't think we

         17  have looked specifically at it.

         18                 DEPUTY MAYOR WALCOTT: At the

         19  configuration for the junior high school.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: All right. When

         21  you figure that out, if you can just let especially

         22  the Counsel know, that would be great.

         23                 DEPUTY MAYOR WALCOTT: Okay.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: I appreciate it.

         25  I know that some of these things as you move
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          2  forward. I appreciate you answering the questions.

          3                 DEPUTY MAYOR WALCOTT: Or attempting

          4  to answer the questions.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: I think Council

          6  Member Liu has a question and before he does, if

          7  Counsel could allow Council Member Liu and Council

          8  Member Comrie to vote on the two items that were

          9  voted on earlier.

         10                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

         11  Comrie.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Aye on both.

         13                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

         14  Liu.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Yes.

         16                 COUNSEL CLERK: The vote stands seven

         17  in the affirmative, none in the negative.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Council Member

         19  Liu.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Thank you, Madam

         21  Chairperson. I want to thank the Deputy Mayor and

         22  Ms. Greenberger and the rest of the team for joining

         23  us today. I think, I'm just going to ask briefly

         24  whether to what extent -- well, are the efforts in

         25  the Bronx in line with the efforts in other boroughs
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          2  that are projected or currently are short school

          3  seats?

          4                 MS. GREENBERGER: The answer is

          5  absolutely.

          6                 DEPUTY MAYOR WALCOTT: Without

          7  question.

          8                 MS. GREENBERGER: We are aggressively

          9  pursuing sites across all five boroughs. We look

         10  very carefully. As you know, we have been working

         11  with you to try to identify sites for Queens. We

         12  recognize there is a need across the City and we

         13  have a need to fill in every borough.

         14                 DEPUTY MAYOR WALCOTT: Part of my side

         15  job, sir, is being a real estate agent. In addition

         16  to what SCA has been doing, anywhere I see a

         17  potential site, I'll feed it into SCA. Literally we

         18  just had a meeting with Councilman Comrie I think a

         19  week and a half ago of a potential site in Queens.

         20  We try to meet with any individuals getting

         21  information.  We've retained real estate agents as

         22  well to identify potential sites and feed it into

         23  SCA, so where there is available we try to go after

         24  that and then sit down and discuss the implications

         25  of those sites.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: How much does it

          3  cost to remediate a site like this? I apologize if

          4  you answered this earlier.

          5                 DEPUTY MAYOR WALCOTT: It's okay.

          6  Thirty million dollars.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Just to remediate

          8  the site or to acquire the site, as well.

          9                 DEPUTY MAYOR WALCOTT: No. We are

         10  talking about remediation.

         11                 MS. GREENBERGER: Remediation. We own

         12  the Mott Haven site.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: The City already

         14  owns the site and it costs $30 million to remediate

         15  and then whatever it costs to build the school. That

         16  cost is on top of it. It is not $30 million for the

         17  entire school.

         18                 MS. GREENBERGER: It is $30 million to

         19  remediate.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: It is $30 million

         21  to get the land ready to build the school on top of

         22  it.

         23                 MS. GREENBERGER: That's correct.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: So, presumably I

         25  think there was discussion that other sites have
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          2  been looked at and $30 million of remediating this

          3  site is a cost effective way to approach it?

          4                 DEPUTY MAYOR WALCOTT: That's correct.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: I think you

          6  addressed this in your testimony, there is a great

          7  deal of concern by my colleague and among the

          8  community that the schools in the area that

          9  currently exist are under-utilized. I think you

         10  addressed it in your testimony by testifying that it

         11  is because parents just over the years wanted to

         12  send their kids to schools in other areas?

         13                 MS. GREENBERGER: I think there is two

         14  things to keep in mind:

         15                 One is for the borough, for the Bronx

         16  borough, and we do look at high school seats across

         17  the borough, we are over-utilized and we have a need

         18  and we have a dramatic need for high school seats.

         19  We have 10,000 seats that need to be placed within

         20  the Bronx.

         21                 Two is within this district there is

         22  current under-utilization, but that number is coming

         23  down each year in part because more and more seats

         24  are being used. In part, because of some of the

         25  smaller schools that have been placed in schools are
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          2  phasing in, and so those seats that are now

          3  available over the next three to five years will not

          4  be available. So, we will have increasing seat need

          5  in this district, as well.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Thank you very

          7  much. Thank you, Madam Chair.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Council Member

          9  Comrie.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Thank you,

         11  Madam Chair.

         12                 I'm looking at the site plan here at

         13  the large document that you gave us, and I see where

         14  you have a MTA storage area still at the East 153rd

         15  Street side; is that going to be there after the (if

         16  this was to be approved), would that still be there?

         17                 MS. GREENBERGER: The MTA is going to

         18  be building a new bridge across 153rd Street. So

         19  that's what is going to be in that space.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: But there is

         21  an MTA storage area there presently?

         22                 MS. GREENBERGER: There is an MTA

         23  storage area in that area presently.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: What's in that

         25  location now? What are they storing?
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          2                 MS. GREENBERGER: They haven't

          3  started. There will be a staging area for the

          4  bridge. It will be material storage.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: So there is

          6  nothing there now?

          7                 MS. GREENBERGER: Not as far as I

          8  know.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: But at the end

         10  of the day, you are saying is going to be what

         11  exactly? What is going to be there?

         12                 MS. GREENBERGER: It is a bridge that

         13  is going to connect East and West Concourse Village.

         14  It will be a new bridge. There was a bridge there

         15  that I think burned down 20, 30 years ago that is

         16  going to be replaced.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: That will be

         18  just for the MTA to utilize?

         19                 MS. GREENBERGER: No, no, no. It will

         20  be a new vehicular bridge.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: A new

         22  vehicular bridge. Okay. Now, you talked earlier

         23  about the level of remediation that was being done

         24  at the site which was a MIS four (phonetic), or a

         25  level four remediation.
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          2                 MS. GREENBERGER: Track four.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Pardon me?

          4                 MS. GREENBERGER: It is called track

          5  four, correct.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Track four.

          7                 And that is the minimum remediation

          8  that can be done for that site as opposed to a track

          9  one? What would be the cost difference between a

         10  track one and a track four remediation?

         11                 MS. GREENBERGER: I don't think we

         12  have that information.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: And the reason

         14  you decided not to do a track one remediation is

         15  because, even though we are growing children there,

         16  you are saying because we are not growing crops

         17  there, it is not the same level of concern.

         18                 MS. GREENBERGER: I think it is worth

         19  noting we worked in consultation with the Department

         20  of Environmental Conservation about what the most

         21  appropriate level of remediation was and together

         22  arrived at that track four designation.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: And track four

         24  goes down how many feet?

         25                 MR. SHERWOOD: It is not specific. I
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          2  don't think the feet of removal would change.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Have you

          4  determined what the leachate or the leakage is of

          5  that site from the toxic waste? Is there a water

          6  table?  What is the water table for that site?

          7                 MR. SHERWOOD: The water table is down

          8  about four feet below the surface.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Four feet.

         10                 MR. SHERWOOD: The leaching rate as is

         11  you said, the ground water flow rate, we've

         12  estimated is roughly on the order of ten feet per

         13  year.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: And that site

         15  has been toxic since the 1800s? So, if you just do

         16  rudimentary math, that is going way past the water

         17  table and down into the subdirt.

         18                 MR. SHERWOOD: It is not a dense

         19  contamination in that it is more dense than water

         20  and would dive within the aquifer. Generally

         21  petroleum products are less dense than water and

         22  they tend to stay at the top.  Where we saw

         23  contamination in our investigation was on average

         24  from about four to eight feet, so it corresponded to

         25  the top of the water table and then down into the
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          2  water table a couple of feet. We did borings all the

          3  way to bedrock to ensure that the contamination was

          4  not diving within the aquifer.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: But the

          6  contamination is throughout the aquifer, since it

          7  has been sitting there so long; isn't that correct?

          8                 MR. SHERWOOD: No, it is not. It is

          9  the first couple feet of the aquifer. And when we

         10  say aquifer --

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Are you

         12  talking about the liquid aquifer or the molten or

         13  the rock size of the aquifer?

         14                 MR. SHERWOOD: I'm talking about the

         15  water table itself.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: The water

         17  table itself.

         18                 MR. SHERWOOD: When I said a hydraulic

         19  conductivity or flow rate of ten feet per year, I'm

         20  talking laterally. So in the direction that the

         21  water flows, not vertically. What we found was that

         22  gas station up on Concourse Village West has flowed

         23  onto the site, has impacted the northwest corner of

         24  the site and that's what happened since that's been

         25  operating when that was in operation which was from
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          2  roughly the early 1950s to 1977, based on our

          3  estimates.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Even for the

          5  year from 1950 to 1977, that means that the entire

          6  wall structure at aquifer is probably contaminated,

          7  correct?

          8                 MR. SHERWOOD: What do you wall

          9  structure?

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: The

         11  surrounding, I forget the technical term for it, but

         12  the surrounding bedrock around the aquifer or

         13  surrounding soil around the aquifer blows through

         14  would be contaminated with whatever materials were

         15  there?

         16                 MR. SHERWOOD: There is not bedrock

         17  contamination. Bedrock varies greatly across the

         18  site anywhere from 70 something feet in the northern

         19  part of the site to as shallow as four or five feet

         20  in the south, but there isn't bedrock contamination

         21  and generally it hangs in that upper part of the

         22  water table.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: How far down

         24  before you hit bedrock at that site?

         25                 MR. SHERWOOD: As I was just saying,
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          2  it varies greatly from roughly 70 some feet in the

          3  north to as little as five to ten feet in the south.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: How much of

          5  the site is the south side that is going to be

          6  classrooms?

          7                 MR. SHERWOOD: Say again.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: The south side

          9  of the facility, how much of that is going to be

         10  classrooms versus the athletic? Which side is the

         11  field on, the north side or the south side of the

         12  project?

         13                 MR. SHERWOOD: The field is on the

         14  east side and runs north to south.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay. In other

         16  words, the siting of the classrooms will be on the

         17  north side of the project or the south side of the

         18  project.

         19                 MS. GREENBERGER: It runs on both. It

         20  is on the west side of the site, but it runs north

         21  to south, the classrooms.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Council Member

         23  Arroyo also spoke about the fact that there is, I

         24  could get a lot more into the site and the

         25  locations. I do have some experience dealing with
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          2  the contaminations in southeast Queens regarding the

          3  amount of leachate and leakage and the dealing with

          4  the post-remediation plan. What is your

          5  post-remediation plan for this site? How you are

          6  maintaining that? Are you doing an air escape valve,

          7  or I forget all of the total technical terms, my

          8  mind has been elsewhere in the past week, but what

          9  is the post-remediation plan to monitor that site?

         10  Are you putting in machinery monitoring it or is

         11  this is going to be a visual monitoring, or are you

         12  going to build a monitoring system in that site?

         13                 MR. SHERWOOD: The first thing that

         14  will happen is post remediation soil and groundwater

         15  samples. Once that contaminated soil is dug out and

         16  you are down to the depth of the total excavation,

         17  samples are taken at the bottom and that information

         18  is presented to the State and they determine whether

         19  the remediation was effective. Did you dig it all

         20  out? Have you gotten it all? That's the first step.

         21                 In addition to that, the proposed

         22  plan, I think you were talking about a system, the

         23  proposed design for the new schools includes a

         24  subslab depressurization system, which is

         25  essentially what you were referring to, which is as
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          2  an added safeguard as sort of belt and suspender

          3  approach to remediation.

          4                 The school is designed --

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Do you want to

          6  describe the subslab?

          7                 MR. SHERWOOD: Sure.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Is that a

          9  system that creates an air pocket that would move

         10  the whatever, possible remediation out to a special

         11  machine that would pull it out of the area?

         12                 MR. SHERWOOD: Again, this is post

         13  remediation. All of the contaminated soil would be

         14  dug out at this point and this system is put in as a

         15  safeguard, an added barrier just to be additionally

         16  conservative. But what it entails is essentially

         17  below the foundation of the proposed schools there

         18  is a gravel layer installed and in that gravel layer

         19  there is piping, perforated piping which is

         20  connected to motors which draw air from below the

         21  foundation of the building and discharge it to the

         22  atmosphere after treatment, if necessary. This is

         23  post remedial, so again, what you are describing is

         24  what might be called SVE system which is actually

         25  for treatment of contaminated soils in place. I'm
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          2  talking about a system that's an added safeguard

          3  after remediation is complete.

          4                 The optimal path for remediation is

          5  source removal. If you can get in there and dig it

          6  out, that's the first choice, as far as the State is

          7  concerned, because you can address it immediately.

          8  You can see it. It is tangible. You can tell that

          9  you have gotten it all. What you are talking about

         10  with a SVE system more of treatment where the

         11  contamination stays in place and you pull it from

         12  the subsurface and treat it.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay. But you

         14  are going to have a passive system that will pull it

         15  out just in case it comes up.

         16                 MR. SHERWOOD: It's an active system.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: It is an

         18  active system?

         19                 MR. SHERWOOD: Yes.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Just one other

         21  question. Do you know the level of remediation that

         22  was done in sound view?  Was that a level one or

         23  level four?

         24                 MR. SHERWOOD: I don't know offhand.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Could you get
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          2  back to the Committee with that information?

          3                 MS. GREENBERGER: Yes, we can.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Thank you.

          5  Thank you, Madam Chair.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Council Member

          7  Arroyo has the last question, a follow-up question,

          8  but I wanted to make an announcement. The Land Use

          9  Subcommittee on Planning Dispositions and

         10  Concessions has been moved across the street to 250

         11  Broadway, 16th floor.

         12                 Council Member Arroyo.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO: Thank you,

         14  Madam Chair.

         15                 The South Bronx High School campus,

         16  we are talking about the school located on St. Ann's

         17  Avenue (phonetic), somewhere between 155 in the

         18  district?

         19                 MS. GREENBERGER: You mean the current

         20  Bronx Leadership Academy?

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO: Yes.

         22                 DEPUTY MAYOR WALCOTT: Give me a

         23  second and let me try to get the exact address.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO: You referenced

         25  the transfer of students from an existing school to
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          2  this proposed site. Is that --

          3                 MS. GREENBERGER: It is a school that

          4  is currently located in Morris High School that will

          5  move to this site.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO: Morris High

          7  School. Not the South Bronx Campus?

          8                 DEPUTY MAYOR WALCOTT: The one you are

          9  referring to, no.  That's not the school I'm

         10  referring to. This is one is in the Morris High

         11  School site.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO: Because I know

         13  that the students in the South Bronx Campus, many

         14  are from the community. I'm not familiar with the

         15  Morris High School program and can't testify whether

         16  they are indeed members of my community or not. This

         17  is the school that has been promised to the group,

         18  South Bronx Churches?

         19                 DEPUTY MAYOR WALCOTT: I think so.

         20                 What I will do, Council Member, so I

         21  can give you accurate information, let me get all

         22  the details and I will get it to both you and the

         23  Chair so the Chair can then share it with the

         24  subcommittee, so that way I have accurate

         25  information for you.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO: And the reason

          3  for the relocation of the school is? What is the

          4  justification?

          5                 DEPUTY MAYOR WALCOTT: It is part of

          6  our plan just throughout the City, as far as where

          7  new small schools are located as they grow and

          8  finding new sites, new buildings for them so that

          9  way where they are currently housed may be also

         10  over-utilized buildings and that way allows those

         11  buildings to go down to a reasonable utilization

         12  level, and provides the schools with an opportunity

         13  to have new school seats, as well.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO: Are there any

         15  other community organizations other than South Bronx

         16  Churches that have been engaged in conversation for

         17  the possible siting of any of the proposed schools

         18  that I know that are in the pipeline, in the

         19  community?

         20                 DEPUTY MAYOR WALCOTT: Again, I will

         21  get back to you. I just don't have that at my

         22  fingertips and I will let you know that.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO: Thank you.

         24                 DEPUTY MAYOR WALCOTT: Sure.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you very
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          2  much.

          3                 DEPUTY MAYOR WALCOTT: Thank you for

          4  the opportunity.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: The next witness,

          6  and after this we will move to panels, and we will

          7  alternate the panels for and against, is Earl Brown,

          8  Bronx Borough President Office, the Deputy Borough

          9  President, for Adolfo Carrion who is speaking in

         10  opposition.

         11                 Please introduce yourself and begin.

         12                 MR. BROWN: Thank you very much. Good

         13  afternoon. My name is Earl Brown, and I am the Bronx

         14  Deputy Borough President. I am here this afternoon

         15  with Jessie Mohica (phonetic) who is our Director of

         16  Educational Policy, and I'm here to read testimony

         17  on behalf of Bronx Borough President Adolfo Carrion,

         18  Jr.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Can I ask you a

         20  favor?

         21                 MR. BROWN: Sure.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Since this is

         23  four pages and we each have a copy, if you could

         24  summarize it?

         25                 MR. BROWN: Summarize.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: That would be

          3  very much appreciated.

          4                 MR. BROWN: Sure. I certainly will.

          5                 I guess there are basically three

          6  points that I wanted to make in our testimony; and

          7  that is, there are safety concerns that we have,

          8  environmental concerns and process concerns as it

          9  relates to this project.

         10                 On August 24th, the Borough President

         11  received a copy of the Draft Environmental Impact

         12  Statement from the SCA concerning this project. Then

         13  a little over a month later, he received on October

         14  2, a copy of the EIS, and there are serious concerns

         15  about the timing of the production of these

         16  documents.

         17                 In addition to that, the Borough

         18  President clearly understands the importance of the

         19  creation of new seats throughout the City and

         20  particularly in the Bronx, but concerning this

         21  specific site, he believes that there are grave

         22  concerns and it is his responsibility to make sure

         23  that those concerns are addressed. There are

         24  currently ten schools within a half-mile radius of

         25  the proposed site with a total register of
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          2  approximately 8,352 students.

          3                 Once this 2,500 (approximately)

          4  school, or I should complexes sited on this site,

          5  there will be close to 11,000 students within this

          6  concentrated area. The EIS goes into great detail

          7  about traffic and transportation impacts, but it

          8  doesn't speak at all at this point about school

          9  safety impacts. And I was listening to Deputy Mayor

         10  Walcott's testimony this morning, he specifically

         11  mentioned issues that we had raised in previous

         12  meetings about student safety. But prior to the

         13  meeting this morning, we had never that issue

         14  addressed, and it certainly was not addressed in the

         15  200 pages of the Environmental Impact Statement.

         16                 We have a school PS 18 at 502 Morris

         17  Avenue that is within the half-mile radius that I

         18  had discussed earlier and we have been approached by

         19  the parents at that school about safety issues

         20  concerning students going to PS 18. As we do in

         21  every situation, we call the meeting. We reached out

         22  to the precinct commander, the school safety

         23  personnel, parents and the leadership teams at the

         24  school to basically talk about what we could do to

         25  remediate the concerns. What we've discovered by
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          2  having that conversation and other conversations, or

          3  other similar conversations in that community, is

          4  that there currently is a problem with resources,

          5  both with the Police Department and school safety

          6  concerning school safety.

          7                 As we understand it, the Police

          8  Department is responsible for training and

          9  monitoring school safety officers that are placed

         10  within schools. And then, of course, the Police

         11  Department has its own school safety team in each

         12  precinct that monitors schools within the precinct

         13  boundaries. What we found, though, is that on almost

         14  every occasion we have been told by both our local

         15  precinct commanders and by school safety that they

         16  do not have enough resources to address the issues

         17  to basically keep the current school community safe,

         18  never mind add an additional 2,500 students to this

         19  current mix. So, that's one of the major concerns

         20  that we have, and we strongly urge that a

         21  comprehensive safety plan be drafted and presented

         22  to both the Council and to the Borough President for

         23  review so that we can be assured that not only the

         24  safety concerns of this campus, if it is every

         25  built, be addressed, but that school safety in
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          2  general in the Bronx is addressed.

          3                 In reference to the environmental

          4  concerns, as I stated previously on August 24th, the

          5  Borough President received from the SCA the Draft

          6  Environmental Impact Statement for the project, then

          7  in October 2 received the final EIS. We have two

          8  concerns about the EIS:

          9                 First, according to the SCA's own

         10  website, the design for this project was completed

         11  on July 21, 2006, fully one month before even the

         12  Draft EIS was completed.

         13                 The final EIS was announced on

         14  October 2nd, after the project had already been put

         15  out to bid. How can the results of the EIS inform

         16  the final design of a project if the project design

         17  is finished and put out to bid before the EIS

         18  process is completed?

         19                 Furthermore, how can the stakeholders

         20  and decision-makers in the approval process use the

         21  environmental review in their deliberations, if the

         22  planning for and bidding of the project is finished

         23  before the review is completed? It has always been

         24  the Borough President's belief that environmental

         25  reviews must be completed before design is
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          2  finalized.

          3                 It also is a great concern to the

          4  Borough President that there was such a short period

          5  of time, about six weeks, between the completion of

          6  the draft EIS and the issuance of the final

          7  Environmental Impact Statement. He believes that

          8  there is great room for error when environmental

          9  assessments are hurried up.

         10                 Now, of course, we all agree that

         11  there is contamination on the site. It has been

         12  talked about today. Mercury, lead, TCE, benzene have

         13  all been found on the site, all in excess of

         14  governmental standards, and the Borough President

         15  has great concerns about the SCA's characterization

         16  of the gravity of the contamination and the proposed

         17  remediation strategy.

         18                 Furthermore, his concerns are

         19  compounded by the fact that current contamination

         20  exists on the ground below the schools adjacent to

         21  the site. Again, it was addressed here this morning,

         22  PS 156 and IS 151, which are built on a platform

         23  over the same railyards. He believes that the

         24  current environmental concerns of that site should

         25  be addressed at the same time as anything is done on
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          2  this site. He believes that an independent

          3  environmental review should be completed for both

          4  sites so that we can fully understand what will be

          5  needed to properly remediate them and make them safe

          6  for children and staff who are currently assigned to

          7  PS 156 and IS 151, as well as any children and staff

          8  that will occupy a proposed site at Mott Haven.

          9                 Finally, I would like to talk a

         10  little bit about the process that was used by the

         11  SCA and the Department of Education to move this

         12  project forward. Although mayoral control of the

         13  educational system was enacted by the State

         14  legislature, there are still other decision-makers

         15  in the process that must be treated as equal

         16  partners. Very little consultation of the Council

         17  and my the Borough President occurred in

         18  relationship to this project. As a result,

         19  substantive dialogue about potential alternative

         20  sites and environmental concerns never happened.

         21                 As you heard Council Member Arroyo

         22  state, she was first contacted or she first had a

         23  meeting with members of the Department of Education

         24  staff and the School Construction Authority staff at

         25  our offices at a meeting that we called as a result
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          2  of us having concerns, but the local Council Member

          3  had not been reached out to up until that time.

          4                 As a result, as I said earlier,

          5  substantive dialogue about potential alternative

          6  sites and environmental concerns never happened.

          7  Therefore, we find ourselves here today discussing

          8  these critical issues that should have been resolved

          9  prior to the project coming to the Council for

         10  approval.

         11                 Case in point, both the Bronx Council

         12  Delegation and the Borough President have been

         13  talking to the Administration about the possibility

         14  of building a sports-themed high school on River

         15  Avenue, adjacent to Yankee Stadium, that could allow

         16  Bronx students the opportunity to gain access to the

         17  lucrative sports profession industry, but due to the

         18  lack of consultation on this project, those

         19  opportunities were never pursued.

         20                 In the future, all stakeholders and

         21  decision makers involved in school siting must be

         22  fully engaged in a project's life from the very

         23  beginning. Not at the end, but throughout the life

         24  of the project and throughout its development. This

         25  will assure that the planning process results in the

                                                            101

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON LANDMARKS

          2  best possible project.

          3                 In closing, let me say that the

          4  Borough President does not question the Department

          5  of Education's commitment to children. But what he

          6  seriously questions here is the process that was

          7  undertaken in the creation of this project which has

          8  resulted in a proposal that may present dangerous

          9  conditions both on and off the site.

         10                 We are badly in need of the new seats

         11  proposed in this plan, but we cannot create those

         12  seats while we place our schools and local

         13  communities in jeopardy.

         14                 Thank you again for the opportunity

         15  to address you about this issue and we're here to

         16  answer any questions that you might have.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Council Member

         18  Arroyo.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO: Thank you,

         20  Deputy Borough President Brown. I want to extend my

         21  appreciation to you and Mr.. Mohica and certainly

         22  the Borough President for giving me the opportunity

         23  to participate in the meeting that was called by

         24  your office regarding this project. I say again on

         25  the record that it was not until then that I was
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          2  engaged in a conversation with anyone concerning

          3  this project, which I find, again, I repeat, very

          4  unfortunate, because I believe that if that were not

          5  the case, we would probably be in a different place

          6  today.

          7                 I insist that we continue to have a

          8  conversation about the problems surrounding this

          9  project and that we participate with those community

         10  stakeholders in a conversation around resolution and

         11  more importantly, better understanding what is being

         12  presented to us. At this point, we're not there.

         13                 I want to extend my appreciation and

         14  hope that we can continue to work together on this

         15  so that we can, at the end, as I said earlier,

         16  celebrate a press conference, all of us in the same

         17  steps of City Hall, as opposed to having two

         18  separate press conferences; one because we are in

         19  favor and the other because we are against, and that

         20  gets us no where really, really quick. Thank you so

         21  much.

         22                 MR. BROWN: Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you,

         24  Council Member. Thank you.

         25                 Before we call up the first panels to
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          2  testify in favor, I wanted to make the announcement

          3  that the Civil Service and Labor Committee has been

          4  moved next door into the Committee Room, if you are

          5  here for that hearing.

          6                 The first panel, we are going to

          7  bring up four at a time and we have the clock set to

          8  two minutes:  Mario Villafranca; Virginia Gonzalez;

          9  I believe; the Reverend Bert Bennett; and Marielys

         10  Diveline (phonetic).

         11                 As you come up to testify today, if

         12  you any of you do have copies, you can give it to

         13  the Sergeant, he will distribute it to us.  And

         14  please introduce yourself. You can start at one end

         15  and work back, however you prefer. Begin please.

         16                 MS. GONZALEZ: Good afternoon, Council

         17  Members. My name is Virginia Gonzalez. I am leader

         18  in South Bronx Churches. South Bronx Churches is a

         19  community-based organization. I have been working

         20  for around 20 years in the South Bronx to work in

         21  issues that affect our community. This organization

         22  is formed to provide a base power for the prayer

         23  group of 21 different congregations to effect social

         24  change on a broad base of issues in the South Bronx.

         25                 We are known for many things. We were
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          2  one of the first organizations that were able to

          3  build affordable homes in the South Bronx for the

          4  people of the South Bronx. We build over 1,000 MI

          5  (phonetic) homes between condominiums, one-family

          6  homes and two-family homes. Another signature in the

          7  South Bronx Churches was the 1992 launching of the

          8  Bronx Leadership Academy. That is a

          9  community-sponsored small public high school. Bronx

         10  Leadership Academy is consistently one of the most

         11  successful small schools in the City, and that led

         12  to the opening of the Bronx Leadership Academy, and

         13  I think there was a question about Bronx Leadership

         14  Academy before. Bronx Leadership Academy is squeezed

         15  into seven classrooms on the second floor of Morris

         16  High School.

         17                 We want the school to grow. We want

         18  the current and future students to have space,

         19  learning space, real teaching space. Bronx

         20  Leadership Academy graduated their first class last

         21  year with a very successful rate.

         22                 Like the vast majority of South Bronx

         23  residents, we want our kids to learn in a very

         24  positive environment. Because of the needs and of

         25  the needs so many other schools and the students,
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          2  since 2004, the leaders and clergy of South Bronx

          3  Churches have been working on a proposal to answer

          4  the challenge of space in our public schools and

          5  this is a real challenge. The schools in the Bronx

          6  are designed to hold 14,000 students, up to now they

          7  have 20,000 students.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: I need to ask you

          9  to wrap up please.

         10                 MS. GONZALEZ: Okay.

         11                 We held countless briefings with the

         12  community, in our communities, where 1,001 people

         13  signed up in support of this plan, and we agreed

         14  that this is the right plan at the right time. Here

         15  we have with us over 150 community leaders who

         16  approved this project. Personal articles have

         17  appeared on the New York Times and the Daily News

         18  regarding this project. Like it was said before, a

         19  countdown went about the times that different

         20  meetings were held at community board and at other

         21  meetings, so I don't understand how people claim

         22  they didn't find out about these until recently.

         23  Because meetings were held at Community Board 4 more

         24  than once. Here with me, I have 2,000 signed

         25  petition from community people who approve this
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          2  project.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you very

          4  much for your testimony. I'm going to be very strict

          5  today because there are a lot of people who are

          6  here, and the only way for me to be fair is to

          7  impose the same rule on time limit on everybody, and

          8  that's the only way we are going to get to hear from

          9  everybody. So, I hope you won't take it personally.

         10  Whether you are here to speak for or against, I'm

         11  going to hold everybody to the same time limit. When

         12  that clock goes off, that means your time is up and

         13  if you can then take a sentence or two to wrap up,

         14  we would appreciate it.

         15                 REV. BENNETT: Good afternoon. My name

         16  is Father Bennett. I am the Pastor of St. David's

         17  Episcopal Church in the South Bronx and I'm also a

         18  leader of the South Bronx Churches.

         19                 Our organization started with

         20  education in the early 1990s. We started Bronx

         21  Leadership Academy 1 and 2 and by 2001, we started

         22  thinking in regards to expanding high schools in our

         23  area and our community. When we were informed by the

         24  Board of Education that they would like to

         25  collaborate with us in regards to seeking additional
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          2  land, South Bronx Churches went out into our

          3  communities and sought that land. We brought that

          4  information back to the Department of Education and

          5  started in 2004 what we call the Mott Haven Campus

          6  project.

          7                 It was approved -- if approved, this

          8  campus project will consist of over 1,700 public

          9  school students in four small state-of-the-art

         10  schools. And by placing these four schools on one

         11  campus, we are now afforded an opportunity to have

         12  our children be exposed to gymnasiums, auditoriums,

         13  libraries, athletic fields, which will also be

         14  opened to the public at large of those in our

         15  community. The location is one of the few areas the

         16  City could actually construct such a campus.

         17                 Despite vast community support for

         18  this campus, despite the City's allocation of $120

         19  million for construction, over $30 million for

         20  remediation, we feel that it is imperative that this

         21  Board seek to approve this project. We believe that

         22  any opposition to this campus is a gross

         23  misrepresentation of our community and it is an

         24  attack on working parents, the children of the

         25  working parents in our community. We seek to have
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          2  the Mott Haven campus approved.

          3                 MS. DIVELINE: Hi.  Good afternoon. My

          4  name is Marielys Diveline and I am an organizer with

          5  the Metro New York Industrial Area Foundation. I was

          6  with South Bronx Churches from 2002 to 2006 and was

          7  involved in the vision and the birth of the Mott

          8  Haven Schools campus. I just want to make something

          9  clear. We are here in support of this campus. Please

         10  stand up if you are here in support of this campus.

         11  Thank you.

         12                 Often we see that people turn out

         13  when they are against. We are here because we

         14  believe in this campus and we know that the birth of

         15  it is something that our community needs.

         16                 Now, the birth of this project came

         17  after numerous individual meetings with community

         18  members who were concerned about the overcrowding

         19  issue in the Bronx. After learning of the initial

         20  troubles of having our own Bronx Leadership Academy

         21  2 as one of five schools in building. On January 1,

         22  2004, we welcome the opportunity to have Chancellor

         23  Klein speak at a SBSC Assembly with over 400 of our

         24  leaders.

         25                 It is after that meeting when we had
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          2  asked them to talk about overcrowding in our schools

          3  that he approached our organization and said I need

          4  space in the Bronx. What did we do? We went to work.

          5  We went to find space and that's what we did when we

          6  found this campus.

          7                 Now, our children deserve and need

          8  this campus. This was confirmed every time we held a

          9  community briefing meeting and many were held. Every

         10  time overcrowding in the schools was brought up, the

         11  campus was seen as a solution.

         12                 We sent information packets to local

         13  officials, to the Borough President's Office

         14  requesting a meeting to talk about this. We were

         15  very proud of it, and then December 2, 2004, the

         16  announcement came that this campus was approved.

         17  Ever since our organization has been working to

         18  ensure that this campus is and will be what our

         19  children need; a healthy environment, a campus with

         20  facilities that will ensure that our children learn.

         21  That's why we are here today.

         22                 MR. VILLAFRANCA: Good afternoon,

         23  Council Members. My name is Mario Villafranca, a

         24  retired Yellow Cab Driver. I attend Immaculate

         25  Conception Church in the Bronx. I have three
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          2  children attending small public school. I live in

          3  the South Bronx for 16 years. I strongly believe we

          4  need this school campus. That's why last week 200

          5  church members in our community, we signed a

          6  petition for that purpose. A group of us here today

          7  for that purpose, we are angry for having our

          8  children go into overcrowding schools. That's why

          9  everybody I know supports this campus. Thank you for

         10  allowing me.

         11                 MS. DIVELINE: If we may use just this

         12  last minute to add something. We understand that

         13  there is opposition to this campus. As we heard

         14  today, the issues of clean-up, there is a plan.

         15  There is a plan in place that we believe in. We know

         16  that there is another group that has some concerns

         17  on this issue. We encourage the City to speak to

         18  this group and there has been movement on both

         19  sides. We believe that that problem can be solved

         20  independently of this Council's vote. We believe

         21  this campus should go through. We also heard two

         22  weeks ago that Councilwoman Arroyo was against this

         23  campus. We reached out to her and had a meeting with

         24  Councilwoman Arroyo, after calls and letters and an

         25  attempt to meet with her went unanswered, we finally
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          2  met with her Tuesday afternoon.

          3                 I was at that meeting. We went in

          4  hoping to find a way to stand together. That is what

          5  we want. We want to be there the day we open this

          6  campus together because we know it is needed for the

          7  community. However, we have not yet found a way to

          8  stand together. We are hopeful that that will

          9  happen.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you. I just

         11  would said I think that everyone who is here today,

         12  or I would hope that everybody who is here today

         13  wants to come together and find a way to do this. It

         14  can't happen independent of us because we have to

         15  vote to approve this, and it is important for me,

         16  for Council Member Arroyo, for my colleagues to know

         17  that we are voting in good conscience for a site

         18  that is not going to endanger the health of our

         19  children, that the public safety issues are going to

         20  be addressed when the Police Department says they

         21  can't handle what's there already, when the DOT had

         22  to change traffic regulations on one block because

         23  they can't handle the traffic that's there already.

         24  So, those are important issues and I do hope that

         25  they can be resolved, and I do hope that we can all
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          2  stand together at some point in the future. Thank

          3  you.

          4                 Council Member Katz.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Very, very quick

          6  question. I'm unclear and I apologize, I had to go

          7  in and out of the room. Just very quickly, if you

          8  can in a minute, your opposition is based on the

          9  overcrowding of the school at the one particular

         10  site for Morris High School; is that why you want

         11  this school to go forward? Not opposition, you are

         12  proponent of the project.

         13                 MS. GONZALEZ: We would like the

         14  school to go forward because we need to start

         15  working in accommodating students that at this time

         16  they are overcrowded in other places and we have to

         17  think not only about Bronx Leadership Academy that

         18  is limited space, what about other students that

         19  live in the area but are forced to somewhere else

         20  because they don't have the space in their area or

         21  they don't have the state-of-the-art school that

         22  they really would like to attend.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: It is a specific

         24  question. In your testimony, you talked about an

         25  overcrowded high school. And I apologize, I missed
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          2  the name; is it Morris High School?

          3                 MS. GONZALEZ: No, I spoke about Bronx

          4  Leadership Academy 2 using space for Morris High

          5  School. They are limited to the space of the amount

          6  of classroom that they use and they share with other

          7  facilities. It is not a really ideal setting.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Okay, thanks.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you very

         10  much.

         11                 The next panel is Ms. Ezell, the

         12  Chair of Community Board 4. Forgive me if I am

         13  pronouncing your names wrong. Veronica Eady and

         14  David Palmer from New York Lawyers for the Public

         15  Interest. I don't know if you want one person to

         16  testify on behalf of New York Lawyers or both folks,

         17  and Mary McKinney.

         18                 I want to make the same request to

         19  New York Lawyers for the Public Interest if I could.

         20  We have a very lengthy written testimony that has

         21  been submitted for the record that is very in depth.

         22  It covers a lot of points. If you can summarize and

         23  point to the most salient points, that would be

         24  appreciated.

         25                 MR. PALMER: I'm not going to read it.
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          2  Sure. I'm mainly going to testify for New York

          3  Lawyers for the Public Interest.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: If you could

          5  introduce yourself.

          6                 MR. PALMER: I will.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you.

          8                 MR. PALMER: I'm Dave Palmer, staff

          9  attorney with New York Lawyers for the Public

         10  Interest. I'm joined with Kevin Olson who drafted a

         11  bunch of this testimony and is here in case there is

         12  any other questions. Also, Veronica Eady is with New

         13  York Lawyers for the Public Interest. We happen to

         14  represent the concerned residents organization, Mary

         15  McKinney on the Soundview Case. Veronica just wanted

         16  to come up just to respond quickly to what Dennis

         17  Walcott said about that site.

         18                 Good morning or good afternoon now.

         19  Thank you for the opportunity to testify.

         20                 New York Lawyers for the Public

         21  Interest, just so you know, is a non-profit civil

         22  rights firm that was formed in 1976 to address the

         23  unmet legal needs of New Yorkers. We started our

         24  environmental justice project to represent

         25  communities, mostly low-income communities of color
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          2  on environmental justice matters. We are speaking

          3  today on behalf of the Bronx Committee for Toxic

          4  Free Schools, which is an community organization of

          5  parents and teachers and residents mainly involved

          6  with PS 156.

          7                 At the outset, I want to say that we

          8  do not oppose the siting of a school on this site

          9  necessarily. We are concerned mainly about the

         10  environmental contamination and a proper clean-up of

         11  the site. We believe that the Council should only

         12  approve placing the school on this site if proper

         13  protections are in place. We think that this process

         14  has been rushed and that protections are currently

         15  not in place and, therefore, we asking the Council

         16  to reject the site at this point.

         17                 By law, the SCA could revamp the plan

         18  and come back and resubmit it.  If we get an

         19  assessment and are able to make recommendations,

         20  they could resubmit it for Council approval again.

         21  We just think it would be irresponsible at this

         22  point to approve the site when we can't be

         23  guaranteed that it is safe for children.

         24                 The City needs to understand that

         25  community members, and not to mention lawyers and
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          2  politicians, we've heard from numerous members today

          3  saying, well, I can't really talk about the

          4  technical data. I can't either. And when Bronx

          5  Committee Toxic Free Schools came to us and ask for

          6  our help, the first thing I said is let's get an

          7  independent environmental assessment. I can't look

          8  at this plan and say whether -- wow, is that really

          9  up already?  May I couple more minutes? I will try

         10  to be quick really.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: I have to be fair

         12  to everybody. But there are a number of you who are

         13  all together on this panel, as I understand.

         14                 MR. PALMER: Correct.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: You can use your

         16  time together.

         17                 MR. OLSON: I signed myself and Dave

         18  together on one card. That was our mistake.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Okay.

         20                 MR. PALMER: I'll be very brief. I

         21  won't even talk about the details of the plan. I

         22  just want to make the point that it is very complex

         23  environmental data. We simply wanted an assessment.

         24  We spoken with four independent experts that have

         25  expressed concern. We simply ask the City to not
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          2  even move forward with this process. I think they

          3  have put you in a position where you need to act

          4  because there is a statutory period that requires

          5  you to act within 20 days when the site application

          6  is submitted. We've asked the City to just withdraw

          7  the site application so you are not put in a

          8  position to even deal with this matter yet so that

          9  the community can get an independent environmental

         10  assessment so that they can meaningful comment on

         11  the plan that's there. And thus far, they have not

         12  had an opportunity to do so.

         13                 I want to say quickly, too, that the

         14  State DEC and Department of Health approved this

         15  plan, yes, but the law is not strong enough. Just

         16  because they approved it, the point is that the law

         17  will allow the DEC to do that even though a proper

         18  plan is not in place. We urge the Council to reject

         19  it today. Thank you.

         20                 MS. MCKINNEY: Good afternoon. My name

         21  is Mary McKinney. I'm with the Chairperson of the

         22  Concerned Residents Organization. Good afternoon. My

         23  name is Mary McKinney. Am I on? Good afternoon. My

         24  name is Mary McKinney and I'm with the Concerned

         25  Residents Organization. Thank you for the
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          2  opportunity to provide testimony to the siting of a

          3  new school in the Bronx on a contaminated industrial

          4  property.

          5                 In 2000, the residents of my

          6  community formed the Concerned Residents

          7  Organization in response to a school, the Soundview

          8  Educational Complex, located on Story Avenue. It has

          9  been sited on the abandoned, severely contaminated

         10  site of Loral Electronic Systems across the street

         11  from our homes, contrary to what Deputy Mayor

         12  Walcott said in his testimony. This site is not an

         13  example of cooperation with SCA. When the SCA

         14  decided to build a school at the site, they did not

         15  inform the community as required by law. In fact,

         16  the SCA spent only 20 days on an environmental

         17  investigation before signing a 30-year lease for the

         18  school.

         19                 The school has been open for two

         20  years, even though the SCA's own environmental

         21  investigation found very high levels of heavy metal

         22  in the soil and groundwater. Arsenic, chromium,

         23  lead, mercury and other chemicals, and was found at

         24  level high as four (sic) times the State standards

         25  for soil and over a thousand times the State
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          2  standards for the groundwater. I want to say that

          3  again. Four-hundred times and then 1,000 times.

          4                 The Concerned Residents asked for the

          5  site to be cleaned up. As a long time neighbor of

          6  this site, we believe the site is severely

          7  contaminated. We believe that the site is neither

          8  safe for nearby resident, community and especially

          9  for the school. I'm calling for the City Council to

         10  stop the SCA's cycle of disregard for health, safety

         11  of children and residents of New York City schools.

         12                 MS. EZELL: Good afternoon everybody.

         13  My name is D. Ezell and I chair Community Board 4.

         14  We support schools. We support the Mayor in his

         15  efforts to situate and locate schools throughout the

         16  City, because they are desperately needed. We

         17  believe this proposal is flawed from the beginning

         18  and we are here today to ask the City Council to

         19  take action to safeguard not only District 4 in the

         20  Bronx where this contentious site is located, but

         21  neighborhoods around the City from the unjust,

         22  unfair, irresponsible, poorly planned and arrogant

         23  tactics of the School Construction Authority and of

         24  the Department of Education.

         25                 We call on the Council not to allow

                                                            120

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON LANDMARKS

          2  the legacy of this Council to reflect that you

          3  supported not only a faulty plan for schools, but

          4  don't let it be said that you supported a

          5  disrespectful and underhanded method of working with

          6  the community. And contrary to what you have heard

          7  today, the community where the proposed project is

          8  actually located has not had a significant number of

          9  meetings with anybody, other than our Council Member

         10  Arroyo. Yes, they came to us. They didn't say

         11  anything about brownfields in the press conference.

         12  I noticed today the same Deputy Mayor who was at the

         13  press conference in District 1 didn't invite

         14  District 4 where the project is located. We had to

         15  chase the information down in the newspapers.

         16                 At that conference from the press

         17  release, no mention of brownfields, no mention of

         18  contamination, no mention of toxins, while we are

         19  out there, yes, we support schools. Develop them. We

         20  have been calling for them. I'm sorry.

         21                 I submitted written testimony. Please

         22  review it. There is some significant information

         23  there. Thank you.

         24                 MS. EADY: I'm Veronic Eady. I'm an

         25  attorney with New York Lawyers for the Public
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          2  Interest. I represent the Concerned Residents

          3  Organization and the Soundview neighborhood. I'm

          4  going to use about 20 to 30 seconds and then give

          5  the rest of the time to Kevin Olson from my office.

          6                 I just wanted to clarify a few things

          7  that Deputy Mayor Walcott said. He indicated that

          8  the Soundview School was a model of cooperation by

          9  the SCA. It is not a model of cooperation. The

         10  community is still struggling to get information

         11  from the SCA that sometimes takes months. That

         12  school is not part of the Brownfields Clean-Up

         13  Program. It didn't have any cursory at best

         14  clean-up, and one of the things that was a positive

         15  thing in that case that we don't have here with PS

         16  156, is that the School Construction Authority

         17  provided funding for the community to hire an

         18  independent consultant. In the case of PS 156, we've

         19  made the request and the SCA has flatly denied it.

         20  So, I'll pass my time to Kevin.

         21                 MR. OLSON: I just wanted to use a

         22  minute here to address some of the questions and the

         23  technical points raised about the protections on

         24  site.

         25                 First of all, the long-term
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          2  maintenance and monitoring protocol, the clean-up

          3  plan by law should have contained a complete

          4  description of this. Instead, every document the SCA

          5  has submitted and I'll quote them, says "monitoring

          6  of the engineering controls will cease once the

          7  remedy is proven to be effective which is expected

          8  to be within two years." And that the longest thing

          9  that they have talked about. They have also talked

         10  about funding and saying they only need funding to

         11  monitor up until the end of construction because at

         12  that point, they will no longer monitor.

         13                 They also said that they will install

         14  an active soil vapor barrier system, but they would

         15  like to prove that they do not need it so they

         16  cannot utilize it entirely. Just by looking at their

         17  own documents, it raised legitimate concerns on the

         18  part of the community. Thank you. There is more

         19  details on that in our written testimony.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: I am assuming you

         21  were here when I questioned the Deputy Mayor and I

         22  had a chance to look through some of your testimony

         23  before the hearing began, which was very helpful.

         24  And I asked him exactly that question because

         25  obviously that's a concern, that the monitoring
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          2  wouldn't cease in a year or two, but that it would

          3  continue. He did state on the record, or rather it

          4  was another member of the panel who stated on the

          5  record that it would continue sort in perpetuity.

          6  But that's not what the document say and that is one

          7  of the reasons I wanted to address this on the

          8  record.

          9                 I did have a question about Soundview

         10  for whoever is the most -- because I'm not familiar

         11  with this project. It is troubling to me because it

         12  is a very similar situation from what I'm hearing of

         13  a site that was contaminated, promises made and then

         14  problems down the line. So, if you could give me a

         15  very brief synopsis of how the Soundview project

         16  relates to this one.

         17                 MS. EADY: Thank you, Chairperson

         18  Lappin.

         19                 The Soundview Educational Complex is

         20  constructed on a site that was for 40 or 50 years a

         21  defense contractor that manufactured electronic

         22  equipment for the military. That site was purchased

         23  by a private owner and the City proposed to

         24  construct a school on it and they actually put the

         25  school inside of an existing building. They did
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          2  very, very cursory clean-up and as Mary McKinney

          3  said, within 20 days this site was initial

          4  investigation done and a lease was signed, a 30-year

          5  lease. Contamination continues to be in place on

          6  that site and one of the things that is most

          7  troubling about it is because the site isn't part of

          8  the Brownfields Clean-Up Program, it hasn't had even

          9  the least amount of review which has been proposed

         10  or the least amount of clean-up which has proposed

         11  for the site that we're talking about today.

         12                 In fact, there are still

         13  manufacturing buildings on that site. They're an

         14  attractive nuisance, major contamination still exist

         15  at that site. The school is on a small corner of the

         16  site. Not only that, but there are municipal solid

         17  waste trucks and in the past there have been West

         18  Nile trucks and to this day, there are tractor

         19  trailer trucks that do fueling operations on that

         20  site while children are still in school and school

         21  is in process. It is really disturbing given the

         22  track record that the SCA has that they are

         23  proposing these schools also in the Bronx.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you very

         25  much.
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          2                 The next panel is Rev. Brawley,

          3  Madeline Peterson, Rev. Peter Gavigan and Carmen

          4  Acevedo all testifying in favor.

          5                 REV. BRAWLEY: Good afternoon to the

          6  Council. My name is Rev. Brawley from the St. Paul

          7  Community Baptist Church in the East New York

          8  section of Brooklyn.  We're standing with the South

          9  Bronx Churches today as we talk about this

         10  proposal.

         11                 First of all, in the past EDC had to

         12  address environmental issues and did work through

         13  them and we erected 2,900 single-family homes, 1,500

         14  new ones in the pipeline, two schools that are very

         15  successful and doing very well.

         16                 We went forward. That's really what

         17  we did. I want to stress the impact of that. A

         18  better learning environment, better living

         19  environment for hard-working New Yorkers. We made

         20  this a reality. We urge you, we strongly urge you

         21  this afternoon not to miss this opportunity to do

         22  the same in the South Bronx. We have to give our

         23  children what they need and what they deserve. Thank

         24  you.

         25                 MS. PETERSON: Good afternoon. My name
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          2  is Madeline Peterson. I'm a member of St. Augustine

          3  Roman Catholic Church and a leader with South Bronx

          4  Churches. I am here today because I have a vested

          5  interest in this project. I am the mother of six

          6  children and the grandmother of nine, all of whom

          7  who have attended or are attending public schools.

          8  I've experienced the difference in the type of

          9  education that my children received, and because of

         10  the overcrowding conditions, the education that is

         11  being forced on my grandchildren and the children in

         12  my community.

         13                 We are in a crisis. We are in

         14  critical condition when it comes to meeting the

         15  needs of our children. They should be able to go to

         16  school in an appropriate educational setting, one in

         17  which they are able to learn. This is their

         18  foundation, the future of their lives. This is their

         19  education. Especially in my community with the

         20  overcrowded conditions, our children are losing out

         21  on the most important tool of their lives. This is

         22  something that all of my family, friends and

         23  community feel about our children. We need smaller

         24  high schools for our community in which our children

         25  will be able to achieve to the best of their
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          2  ability. This campus of schools will be like an

          3  oasis in the South Bronx for generations to come.

          4  Thank you.

          5                 REV. GAVIGAN: Good afternoon. My name

          6  is Father Peter Gavigan, Pastor of Our Lady of

          7  Victory Church in the Bronx. I have been a pastor

          8  and an Associate Pastor in the Bronx for 33 years.

          9                 Ms. Lappin, I have a question for

         10  you. How many members are a member of this

         11  Committee? How many members are a member of this

         12  Committee?

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: This isn't a back

         14  and forth.

         15                 REV. GAVIGAN: About how many members

         16  are on this Committee?

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: There are nine

         18  members of the Subcommittee.

         19                 REV. GAVIGAN: Nine members on this

         20  Committee.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: But I'm going to

         22  reiterate, this is not a back and forth. This is an

         23  opportunity for you testify but not to ask

         24  questions.

         25                 REV. GAVIGAN: Yes, I would like -- it
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          2  is an opportunity for what? Testify.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Right, but not to

          4  ask questions of us.

          5                 REV. GAVIGAN: Well, I just need to

          6  know, because all I see are two members here and I

          7  think the community here needs the respect of

          8  listening, the whole Council, the whole Committee

          9  listening. So now I will give my --

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: If there isn't

         11  order maintained, then we will clear the room.

         12                 REV. GAVIGAN: Now I will give my

         13  testimony.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: You have 54

         15  seconds left.

         16                 REV. GAVIGAN: All right. First, I'm

         17  the pastor next to including the largest public

         18  housing projects in the whole country, I believe.

         19  I've seen in all my years so many drop-outs. Young

         20  people selling drugs.

         21                 Are you listening, Ma'am? You just

         22  keep talking to each other. I'm sorry.

         23                 So many drop-outs, people selling

         24  drugs in the hallways. Why have I stayed in the

         25  South Bronx so long? Because 20 years ago, South
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          2  Bronx Churches came along and since then I and my

          3  parents, the parents have seen hope. Bronx

          4  Leadership Academy and so much has been done as you

          5  have heard.

          6                 I believe the State environmental and

          7  the City environmental concerns will be handled. So

          8  I ask you to please listen to the people and

          9  continue this project and permit it. And please in

         10  the future, ask the Council Members to stay and

         11  listen to the people.

         12                 MS. ACEVEDO: Good afternoon. My name

         13  is Carmen Acevedo. I am the Coordinator of the

         14  Religious Educational Program at St. Jerome's.  We

         15  service about 200 children every week. I represent

         16  many of the everyday people, meaning the parents of

         17  our community. We are very concerned for our

         18  children and believe we must invest now in future

         19  children, the future citizens of our great country.

         20                 This proposal has the vast majority

         21  of support from the community, parents, friends, and

         22  family for educational campus. In our community

         23  alone, we have submitted over 1,200 signatures from

         24  St. Jerome's for this proposal. It is very clear

         25  that we must look into our hearts and invest in our
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          2  children because they are the future of tomorrow and

          3  many years to come. Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you. The

          5  next panel in opposition, Jane Maisel, Bronx

          6  Community for Toxic Free Schools; John Fielder,

          7  President of the PTA, Council District 7; Almeta

          8  Trammel, Community Education Council and Dominique

          9  Atchinson. You can begin.  And Carlos Alicea, is

         10  Carlos here? Mr. Alicea? Okay. Is Yolanda Gonzalez

         11  here? Yolanda can join the panel. Thank you.

         12                 MS. ATCHISON: Good afternoon. My name

         13  is Minister Dominique Atchison. I do social justice

         14  ministry at Judson Church in the West Village, but I

         15  am a life long resident of the South Bronx,

         16  specifically Concourse Village, which is seen right

         17  here behind the site.

         18                 Twenty years ago I was a kindergarten

         19  student in PS 156, in Ms. Smith's class, Room K2107,

         20  which apparently sits right above the area where the

         21  concentration of contaminants were found.

         22                 When I was a child, I had some minor

         23  health issues. For example, I grew too fast. I was

         24  five feet tall when I was six. And when I was 12, I

         25  was this height. I got my first period when I was
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          2  eight, and was diagnosed with asthma when I was 12

          3  years old. I literally could not breathe without the

          4  aid of daily steroid use. Until I went to college in

          5  Ohio, I could not breathe without the use of this

          6  medicine. I also struggled with different forms of

          7  learning disabilities.

          8                 Also, my father has a debilitating

          9  disease that they said was a result of chemicals and

         10  we didn't know what that was until recently. As I

         11  sat and wrote this statement, I thought that it

         12  might be pointless because there is no proof of

         13  these things being connected to each other, but

         14  that's the exact problem. The problem is that we

         15  don't have information, that this thing has been

         16  sitting there for 100 years plus, and we don't have

         17  the information needed to say whether or not these

         18  things that have been going on for at least 20 years

         19  are connected to what's going on right now. Thank

         20  you.

         21                 MS. TRAMMEL: Hello.  My name is

         22  Almeta Trammel. I am a representative of the

         23  Community Education Council. I must say before I

         24  read my statement, I am a resident of the South

         25  Bronx and I do live adjacent to 156 and my children
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          2  go to the adjoining school PS 29 in the area.

          3                 Good afternoon. As I said, my name is

          4  Almeta Trammel. I am a representative of the

          5  Community Education Council for District 7. The

          6  statement that I read before you today has been

          7  approved by the Board as of November 30, 2006 at our

          8  public meeting. We will present a resolution at our

          9  next public meeting for the month of December. We,

         10  the CEC, are in full support of the New York

         11  Department of Education regarding principles for

         12  improving the environmental qualities of school.

         13                 Although focus on teaching and

         14  learning and education must also address the needs

         15  to maintain a safe and secure and healthy school

         16  environment, the capacity of children to learn is

         17  impeded if their school environment contains

         18  elements which are hazardous to their health.

         19                 With that being said, we the

         20  Community Education Council of District 7 will not

         21  support any construction of schools in land

         22  contaminated with toxins, until that land is cleaned

         23  in its entirely and free of all contamination and

         24  certified by the State Department of Environmental

         25  Conservation as land free of contamination for the
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          2  health and safety of children, teachers, parents and

          3  community. We are asking for the School Construction

          4  Authority on behalf of the Department of Education

          5  to establish a plan in which a construction of new

          6  schools in any land of New York City must be free of

          7  all contamination; approved by all City and State

          8  agencies, consulted by the community in a public

          9  form in the community in which will be constructed

         10  with the information of the purpose of the project,

         11  including a presentation to all parties interested

         12  in such construction prior to the creation of a new

         13  school building. Thank you.

         14                 MS. MAISEL: Good afternoon. I'm Jane

         15  Maisel. I am a staff developer at PS 156. I want to

         16  thank you for having us here. I'm not here

         17  representing the school. I am here as a member of

         18  the Bronx Committee for Toxic Free Schools.

         19                 You have heard about our group, that

         20  we are made of parents, grandparents, foster

         21  parents, teachers and staff and members of the

         22  community. We've come together because of the

         23  shocking discovery that under our school and next to

         24  our school are illegally high concentrations of

         25  toxic chemicals. And the fact that the City knew
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          2  about this for a period of time, a substantial

          3  period of time before they told us about it, the

          4  community was not informed.

          5                 I want to tell you a little about

          6  someone who wanted to come and testify today. She is

          7  a beloved teacher at 156. Her name is Michele

          8  Macklin (phonetic). She is too ill to come today.

          9  She is also a kindergarten teacher.

         10                 MS. ATCHISON: She was my teacher.

         11                 MS. MAISEL: She was your teacher? She

         12  worked for nearly 20 years at PS 156 in classrooms

         13  that we now know are right above the highest

         14  concentrations of contaminants. She got cancer, took

         15  a leave of absence and her cancer went into

         16  remission. At which point she returned to work and

         17  she was placed back in the same classroom. This was

         18  at a time when the City actually knew about the

         19  contamination, but hadn't yet communicated it to the

         20  community.

         21                 Now, there is no proof.  Again, there

         22  is no proof that the contamination is what made her

         23  ill, but I think people would agree that no one

         24  would have put her back in that classroom if they

         25  had known what was underneath, and she asks you to
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          2  look very seriously at this site application before

          3  approval. I will submit other testimony because we

          4  are talking about an incomplete clean-up. We are

          5  talking about a process that hasn't been respectful.

          6  If I can just say that the library meeting, the

          7  first meeting that we requested at 156 to be told

          8  about this, the SCA came, didn't have anything for

          9  us to read. They just sort of poo pooed it and said,

         10  everything will be fine. Don't worry. There is a

         11  little that we have to clean up, but we will be

         12  taking care of it. We don't have anything for you to

         13  read on it. They really were not forthcoming.

         14                 And there are some studies that I

         15  will submit to you and they talk about --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you.

         17                 MS. MAISEL: I'll just say that they

         18  do talk about the dangers of the contamination.

         19                 MS. GONZALEZ: Hello.  Good afternoon.

         20  Thank you for allowing us to testify. My name is

         21  Yolanda Gonazalez. I am the Executive Director for

         22  Nos Quedamos. I already submitted my written

         23  statement. So I am just going to elaborate on my

         24  statement that is before you here. We were at a

         25  meeting at PS 156 where family, after family, after
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          2  family have stated the terrible conditions and the

          3  deplorable manner of which the toxins are being

          4  released into the air.

          5                 We know that the remediation is not

          6  happening right now. However, the restabilization of

          7  the retaining wall is being done as we speak. And

          8  the pollutants of dust that is clouding the school,

          9  the residents around the school and the vicinities

         10  around there are going all over the place. Plus the

         11  dust has been put on cars where they have traveled

         12  outside the contaminated area. We are stating that

         13  we have to look at how we are going to remediate

         14  this site.

         15                 The way that the site is being

         16  remediated is not being contained. And I assure you

         17  that it has been going all over the place in the

         18  City of New York, including here because people are

         19  just bringing in the pollutants here today. We want

         20  to make sure to take the opportunity that if the

         21  site is going to be remediated, it has to be a level

         22  one remediation. If not, look at Star Light Park in

         23  Annabel Palma's district that is being tried to also

         24  clean up (sic) because it is a gasification plant.

         25  And the buildings back then were imploded and not
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          2  carted away. We have to look all of the pollutants

          3  as such, because they are going to be leaching years

          4  after this is being done. It has been there 100

          5  years and it has not gone away. It is not going to

          6  go away by itself, I guarantee you that. Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you very

          8  much. The next panel is in favor. Jose Rodriguez,

          9  Upper Manhattan Together; Rev. Patrick O'Connor,

         10  Betty Turner, and Rev. Paul Block.

         11                 MR. RODRIGUEZ: Good morning. My name

         12  is Jose Rodriguez. Good afternoon. I am leader of

         13  Upper Manhattan Together, an affiliate of Metro

         14  Industrial Area Foundation. We are an organization

         15  that has been building community power to improve

         16  the quality of life of East Harlem, West Harlem, the

         17  Upper West Side and Washington Heights. I came to

         18  this country in December of 1973. I am proud of New

         19  York City public education. I am also the father of

         20  six children. Four of them made it through the

         21  system, and are now doing well in college. I want to

         22  thank public education for what they have done for

         23  me and for my children. I hope they do the same

         24  thing for each child in this City.

         25                 I graduated from George Washington
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          2  High School in Washington Heights. That school now

          3  houses five schools. Now, is that overcrowding or

          4  what? Because of overcrowding, we lost something

          5  that we held very dearly. We lost our basketball,

          6  handball and tennis court. We also lost access to

          7  the track and field which used to be open to the

          8  community. I am here today to ask the City Council

          9  to approve this project.

         10                 And now, I would like to ask everyone

         11  who is here today in support of this project to

         12  please stand up. Thank you. These are the parents

         13  and relatives of some of the children that will be

         14  attending this project, this school. I am sure that

         15  they are concerned about their children's safety.

         16                 I want to finish by saying South

         17  Bronx Churches, Upper Manhattan Together is standing

         18  with you. And together we will see this project

         19  through. Thank you, and may God bless us all.

         20                 REV. O'CONNOR: Good afternoon. I'm

         21  Rev. Patrick O'Connor from First Presbyterian Church

         22  in Jamaica, a member of the Queens Citizen

         23  Organization, which is a sister organization of

         24  South Bronx Churches. We believe that the issue of

         25  public education is one of the most critical for the
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          2  cities because of the level of overcrowding that

          3  exists in most communities of color. We believe that

          4  South Bronx Churches along with the Department of

          5  Education has really worked hard to create an

          6  opportunity. There is also a clear plan to mitigate

          7  against some of the very critical environmental

          8  issues.

          9                 We believe that it is possible to

         10  approve the plan for the schools, while at the same

         11  time continuing to monitor the environmental issues.

         12  So, I'm here to speak in support of this and to hope

         13  that the Council will see this on two levels and

         14  will support the work that has gone in before now to

         15  make sure that students who need small schools can

         16  have the opportunity to get them. Thank you.

         17                 MS. TURNER: Good afternoon. I'm Betty

         18  Turner and I am a leader from Our Lady of Lord's

         19  Church in Manhattan. We are a member congregation of

         20  Upper Manhattan Together and affiliated with the

         21  Metro Industrial Areas Foundation. We are here to

         22  support our sister organization, South Bronx

         23  Churches. I certainly hope that the environmental

         24  issues can be resolved perhaps outside of this

         25  Council vote. Because as a product of public
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          2  schools, mine were segregated and so I became

          3  accustom to second-hand books, second class

          4  facilities, used desks. So, the idea of children,

          5  our children, having a campus that is

          6  state-of-the-art, where they can be given all the

          7  opportunities that many of us didn't have, really,

          8  really excites me.

          9                 Do they not deserve new up-to-date

         10  science labs? Yes, they do. Do they not deserve a

         11  state-of-the-art theater? Yes, they do. Do they not

         12  deserve an ample auditorium? Yes, they do. Do they

         13  not deserve art studios? Yes, they do. Do they not

         14  deserve a functional 4,000 square foot library? Yes,

         15  they do. Do our children not deserve an opportunity

         16  to reach their full potential, explore and

         17  strengthen their talents and be given the foundation

         18  to become the most productive citizens of our

         19  community? Thank you.

         20                 REV. BLOCK: Good afternoon. My name

         21  is Paul Block. I'm the Pastor at Transfiguration

         22  Lutheran Church in the South Bronx and a leader of

         23  the South Bronx Churches. I look forward to the day

         24  when we do have that press conference and celebrate

         25  the building of this campus. I have heard a lot
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          2  people speak against, say that, well, I'm not

          3  against building schools, but... I would just like

          4  to take a step back and say, well we are judged by

          5  the fruits of our labor. We are either trying to

          6  work towards building schools or against building

          7  schools. And two issues that have been raised, one

          8  is the environmental issues. That is an issue in

          9  itself. But it was actually arisen when the desire

         10  to build the campus started. We have the opportunity

         11  to clean this up.

         12                 I've heard two different things come

         13  from you. One saying, well, we got to get rid of

         14  these toxins, and then in the same statement say,

         15  we've got to stop the clean up. If you are truly

         16  want the clean up of the toxins, then let's get it

         17  done. And we will figure out the best way to get

         18  that done certainly. But to stop the clean up will

         19  mean to allow the toxins to continue to exist which

         20  we don't want. We want to get rid of the toxins so

         21  that the kids in IS 156 and the kids that will

         22  hopefully go to this new campus will be able to live

         23  freely.

         24                 Secondly, safety. I have students in

         25  my congregation that go to IS 156, and if you just
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          2  continue to walk beyond, you go into this brownfield

          3  area. We haven't talked about the cost of safety for

          4  not building the campus. If you imagine walking by

          5  this spot right here, you can imagine to the student

          6  how good that will feel. Now contrast it by walking

          7  with broken beer bottles, syringes and all the

          8  things that are associated with brownfields, it is

          9  clear that there is a safety cost associated with

         10  leaving the brownfields there.

         11                 I also have a quick request that we

         12  could prepare written testimony to provide for your

         13  office this afternoon. Is that fair?

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: This meeting is

         15  going to be recessed until tomorrow morning. So you

         16  can submit testimony in writing this afternoon.

         17                 REV. BLOCK: Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: And the Sergeant

         19  can give you instruction on how to do that.

         20                 REV. BLOCK: Okay, thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: I would add even

         22  after this Subcommittee acts, the Land Use Committee

         23  will vote Wednesday at 10:00 a.m. The full Land Use

         24  Committee will vote Wednesday at 10:00 a.m.

         25                 Just let me clarify. The Land Use
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          2  Committee is going to meet twice. Tomorrow morning

          3  at 10:00, but is not going to take up this item. And

          4  then again, Wednesday morning at 10:00. This

          5  Subcommittee will reconvene Wednesday morning at

          6  9:45. The full Land Use Committee will meet 10:00

          7  a.m., Wednesday morning. So you have until then to

          8  submit testimony even after you leave here today.

          9                 The next panel is in opposition.

         10  Chaira Salem, Omar Salem, Carlos Alicea. Push in the

         11  button. When the light is off, it is on.

         12                 MR. ALICEA. Good afternoon.  My name

         13  is Carlos Alicea. I am an environmental scientist

         14  from For a Better Bronx and I live in the Bronx as

         15  well. Let me be clear, I was a teacher for three

         16  years in Fannie Lou Hamer (phonetic). I understand

         17  really the need for improve and have a school

         18  facility that actually provide a very important good

         19  environment for our children to learn. I don't

         20  oppose to the concept of the school or the campus.

         21  But certainly I am opposed to this project and the

         22  siting of this project without having assurances

         23  that the pollution system in this place adequately

         24  protect our children.

         25                 I believe it is about policy to site
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          2  schools or facilities in brownfield sites. I believe

          3  that this proposal of the Mayor is disrespect to our

          4  community. Because he is presenting this project in

          5  this basis in the place that our community that

          6  needs so much better school facilities. And he is

          7  putting us in a very hard place. The question that I

          8  ask is to me, that this meants there is not a clean

          9  site in the Bronx to put this facility?  And this is

         10  impossible idea for me because I don't think it is

         11  true that there is not a clean site. What is the

         12  real reason for siting this place? It would be

         13  because the clean sites are going to be reserved for

         14  the wave of gentrification that is out threatening

         15  in the Bronx. So we can put the public schools for

         16  my people in the place that are polluted.

         17                 I really believe that I oppose the

         18  siting and I believe that we need independent review

         19  assessment of this project for this reason. If we

         20  analyze all of those sites in the Bronx and we

         21  understand that this is the only site that need to

         22  be done, then we need to base our clean-up

         23  assessment, not in the cost of $30 million

         24  assessment, but in the most stringent clean up of

         25  standard available, because the health of our
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          2  children is not to be replaced. Thank you very much.

          3                 MS. SALEM: My name is Chaira Salem

          4  and I'm a parent volunteer at PS 156. I'd like to

          5  say one thing before I start. Though I commend South

          6  Bronx Churches for everything they have done for our

          7  community so far, I'd like to believe that they are

          8  here today uninformed of what is really going on at

          9  the site. Right now I have parents coming up to me,

         10  right now as there is activity in the construction

         11  site, I have parents coming up to me with children

         12  who are having epileptic seizures. I have them

         13  coming up to me with children who are having high

         14  fevers, rashes, just like my own son here today. I

         15  have them coming to me with severe headaches and

         16  migraines, and I would like to pose a question to

         17  the SCA, why, if they are so interested in cleaning

         18  up, why don't they do it correctly?  There has to be

         19  a comprehensive clean up plan at the table before

         20  they start anything, and I haven't seen that happen

         21  yet.

         22                 I understand that South Bronx

         23  Churches has had petitions signed. I also have

         24  petitions with me today of people from the community

         25  of parents of children that attend PS 156, as well
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          2  as the community members that live at Concourse

          3  Village houses and also around the community. I'm

          4  sure that most of the people that stood up do not

          5  live in that community. I live there. And recently I

          6  have been told by a doctor that I am allergic to

          7  whatever is being let out in the air around the

          8  school and have been put on Albuterol and Clariton.

          9  My son has a rash that the doctors cannot determine

         10  where the origin of this rash has come from. What is

         11  causing this rash? Not to mention the headaches that

         12  he has been experiencing and the dizziness. He had a

         13  dizzy spell right outside the steps of City Hall.

         14  Yes, actually he submitted his name. Go ahead.

         15                 MR. SALEM: My name is Omar Salem.

         16                 MS. SALEM: Go ahead. Don't be afraid.

         17                 MR. SALEM: I have this rash and when

         18  I first got it in September, it itched a lot and I

         19  have to take a medicine.

         20                 MS. SALEM: What would you like to see

         21  happen? Go ahead, tell them.

         22                 MR. SALEM: I would like to see them

         23  first clean up the site and then build.

         24                 MS. SALEM: What else have you been

         25  feeling?
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          2                 MR. SALEM: I have been feeling

          3  dizziness and headaches and the after affects of the

          4  rash leaves these white marks on my arm. I have got

          5  these all over my body.

          6                 MS. SALEM: That is just one of the

          7  stories that come out of 156. I have had teachers

          8  come up to me with miscarriages and why does it have

          9  to get to this point in order for things to happen?

         10  What else needs to happen for them to go over their

         11  plan and make it better for us?  As he said, clean

         12  it up. That's all we're asking. We're asking to

         13  clean it up. For you to say that we are against the

         14  schools, we're not against the schools. We need the

         15  schools. We know we need the schools. But to breathe

         16  that every day, to breathe that every day -- thank

         17  you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Omar, thank you

         19  for coming and testifying and participating and for

         20  speaking up.

         21                 The last panel is in favor, Theresa

         22  Ricks, Father John Grange and Rev. Paul Block.

         23                 MS. RICKS: Good afternoon. My name is

         24  Therese Ricks. I live in the Bronx for 15 years.

         25  Lucky for me, my child does attend Bronx Leadership
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          2  Academy and we need the space for our children. It

          3  is just too crowded. They need the space for the

          4  classrooms. I'm here because I want to tell the

          5  Committee that the vast majority of my friends and

          6  family and community supports this project. We are

          7  asking and expecting the City Council to do the

          8  same.

          9                 FATHER GRANGE: My name is John

         10  Grange. I was born in 1940 and was raised in the

         11  Bronx there until 1960. Then I went away to be a

         12  priest. I came back in 1976. I have been there every

         13  since. I am there so long that people say, how you

         14  can stand it there. They don't understand the South

         15  Bronx. They don't understand the people of the South

         16  Bronx. Above you, Council people, are the wonderful

         17  words of Abraham Lincoln, "a government of the

         18  people, by the people and for the people." We here

         19  are the people of the South Bronx. We really are.

         20  Please listen to us. Also, the young child who spoke

         21  before, he is my child too. And you know the whole

         22  business of contamination which is an evil, evil

         23  thing, would not have even been presented if it

         24  wasn't for South Bronx Churches starting this

         25  process. So, I ask you, especially Ms. Arroyo, let
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          2  us work together. Let us reason together. Let us

          3  make this school campus a shining light so that not

          4  only people look at the light coming from Yankee

          5  Stadium and say, oh, wow, the Yankees are playing.

          6  But they see the light from Mott Haven Campus and

          7  they say, oh, children are learning. We can do it.

          8  Your mother would want to do it. We want to do it.

          9  So, let's do it together, please. Don't say no.

         10  Don't say no to the young. Don't say no to the

         11  future. Let's all together say yes. Whatever

         12  problems there are, there are none that cannot be

         13  solved by us together. Thank you for listening.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you. I and

         15  I want to thank everybody who took the time today to

         16  come to testify and shared their views with us.

         17  There is nobody else who signed up to testify, so

         18  this hearing is now closed. And this meeting will be

         19  recessed until Wednesday, December 6th, at 9:45 a.m.

         20

         21                 (The following written testimony was

         22  read into the record.)

         23

         24

         25
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          2  Written Testimony Of:

          3  Maida Galvez, MD, MPH

          4  Assistant Professor PEHSU

          5

          6  Nita Vangeepuram, MD

          7  Pediatric Environmental Health Fellow

          8

          9  Geoffrey Collins

         10  Mount Sinai Medical Student

         11

         12  Pediatric Environmental Health Specialty Unit

         13  Mount Sinai Hospital

         14

         15  December 4, 2006

         16

         17

         18  Members of the NYC Council Land Use Subcommittee on

         19  Landmarks, Public Siting and Maritime Uses

         20  Members of the NYC Council Land Use Committee

         21  Members of the NYC Council

         22

         23  Re: Potential environmental impacts on children's

         24  health from the proposed Mott Haven site school

         25  construction
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          2

          3  To the Members of the above Committees:

          4

          5                 The Pediatric Environmental Health

          6  Specialty Unit (PEHSU) at Mount Sinai Medical Center

          7  is one of eleven centers nationwide supported by the

          8  Centers for Disease Control and Prevention that

          9  provides clinical consultations for children with

         10  toxic environmental exposures and diseases of

         11  suspected environmental origin. The PEHSU team

         12  includes physicians, researchers and industrial

         13  hygienists with expertise in the role of the

         14  environment on the growth, development, and health

         15  of children. Due to questions and ongoing debate

         16  about the risks of exposing children to even low

         17  levels of toxic substances, the PEHSU feels that it

         18  is important to comment on the proposed development

         19  of the Mott Haven school site.

         20                 We understand that the School

         21  Construction Authority (SCA) plans to remediate the

         22  site as informed by the Brownfield Cleanup Program

         23  (BCP) "Track 4" guidelines. It is our assessment

         24  that there are instances in which these guidelines

         25  do not adequately address the special considerations
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          2  required to protect children from environmental

          3  exposures. The proposed development of this

          4  contaminated site poses the risk of exposure to a

          5  number of toxins, including lead. There is a large

          6  body of scientific evidence illustrating the

          7  detrimental health effects seen with low level lead

          8  exposure in children. We highly recommend a thorough

          9  environmental investigation prior to any development

         10  of the site in order to protect the health of

         11  current and future school children. It is critical

         12  that we ensure a safe and healthy environment where

         13  children learn and play.

         14                 Children are uniquely vulnerable to

         15  environmental exposures.

         16                 Children have disproportionately

         17  heavy exposures to environmental toxins. This is

         18  demonstrated by the higher levels of many chemicals

         19  measured in children's blood and urine compared with

         20  adults published in the Center for Disease Control

         21  and Prevention's biomonitoring reports.

         22                 Additionally children are inherently

         23  more sensitive than adults to the chemicals that

         24  they encounter. For instance, pound for pound of

         25  body weight, children drink more water, eat more
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          2  food and breathe more air than adults. Children

          3  therefore take into t heir bodies proportionately

          4  much greater quantities of any toxic chemicals that

          5  are present in soil, water, food, or air. Children

          6  further magnify their exposures as a result of

          7  developmentally appropriate hand-to-mouth behavior

          8  and simply because they live closer to the ground.

          9  Children's metabolic pathways, especially in the

         10  first months after birth, are immature. Their

         11  ability to metabolize, detoxify, and excrete many

         12  toxicants differs from that of adults. They are less

         13  well able to deal with a number of chemical toxins

         14  such as lead.

         15                 Children are uniquely vulnerable to

         16  lead exposure.

         17                 The ingestion of lead by children is

         18  a major health concern. Children playing around

         19  soils with higher levels of lead will ingest some of

         20  the lead dust through activities such as sticking

         21  fingers in their mouths and ingesting soil. Although

         22  inhaled lead comprises a much smaller portion of

         23  exposure than ingested lead, between 30 and 50

         24  percent of inhaled lead enters the bloodstream.

         25  Children are of special concern regarding lead
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          2  poisoning. Eating soil by young children is of

          3  particular concern since intestinal absorption of

          4  lead is approximately five times greater in children

          5  than adults. Children have a different breathing

          6  zone than most adults in that they are closer to the

          7  ground or floor where lead is deposited. Because the

          8  nervous systems of children are still developing and

          9  their body masses are relatively small, lead

         10  concentrations have a greater impact on children

         11  than on most adults.

         12                 In the body, lead can affect

         13  hematologic (blood), renal, neuromuscular,

         14  gastrointestinal, central nervous, and reproductive

         15  systems. At lower levels of exposure, lead poisoning

         16  leads to hyperirritability, poor memory, and

         17  sluggishness. The neurotoxicity of lead is of

         18  particular concern, because evidence from

         19  prospective longitudinal studies has shown that

         20  neurobehavioral effects, such as impaired academic

         21  performance and deficits in motor skills, may

         22  persist even after lead levels have returned to

         23  normal.

         24                 There have been multiple recent

         25  studies showing the potential for long-term
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          2  neuro-developmental health effects from much lower

          3  exposures to lead. Canfield et al published an

          4  article in 2003 describing a sample of children all

          5  with blood lead levels below 10 ug/dL. Even at these

          6  low blood lead levels, there were decreases in IQ

          7  scores. Estimates showed that IQ declined by 7.4

          8  points as blood lead concentrations increased from 1

          9  to 10 ug per deciliter. Lanphear et al published an

         10  analysis in 2005 on low level lead exposure and

         11  children's intellectual function. For a given

         12  increase in blood lead, the lead-associated

         13  intellectual decrement for children was high even

         14  for those children with blood lead levels less than

         15  7.5 ug/dL. These studies have demonstrated that

         16  children's IQ declined with lead exposure at levels

         17  previously thought to be safe. Given this recent

         18  research and the unique susceptibility of children,

         19  we strongly urge the Planning Board to enforce the

         20  most stringent clean-up standard available should

         21  your Board allow this site to be remediated.

         22                 Children's exposure at Mott Haven.

         23                 Children are most commonly exposed to

         24  lead through normal hand-to-mouth behaviors.

         25  Contaminated bare soil can migrate long distances in
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          2  airborne dust. It is clear from studies of blood

          3  lead levels in children that airborne soil

          4  represents a significant source of exposure to lead

          5  (Laidlaw, 2005). Children also have age and

          6  developmentally appropriate tendencies to explore

          7  their environments. In the case of the proposed

          8  schools construction at Mott Haven, children attend

          9  the kindergarten abutting the site in question may

         10  be exposed to harmful levels of lead in the form of

         11  dust unless the strictest precautions are taken

         12  during remediation and construction efforts.

         13                 Conclusion.

         14                 The main goal of the PEHSU is to

         15  protect the safety and well being of children.

         16  Current residential clean-up standards do not take

         17  into account new evidence ab out the health outcomes

         18  related to low level lead exposure. In addition, it

         19  is imperative that the construction site be

         20  remediated without contaminating the immediately

         21  adjacent environment which includes a kindergarten.

         22  If this site is remediated and developed, we

         23  strongly support adoption of the most stringent

         24  cleanup initiatives to ensure both safe and adequate

         25  clean up of the contaminated area. Children's health
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          2  should be considered during all stages of planning

          3  for this site.

          4                 If you have any questions for our

          5  team of researchers and physicians, please do not

          6  hesitate to contact us.

          7                 Sincerely, Maida Galvez, MD, MPH,

          8  Assistant Professor PEHSU; Nita Vangeepuram, MD,

          9  Pediatric Environmental Health Fellow; Geoffrey

         10  Collins, Mount Sinai Medical Student.

         11                 (Hearing concluded at 4:15 p.m.)
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